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 In line with our unflinching resolve and commitment, 
one of the key accomplishments at the end of our 

last strategic planning cycle was the complete 
overhaul of our risk management architecture and 

strengthening of our business and processes for 
sustainable growth.

Following big audacious action steps, FBNHoldings 
is well positioned for growth. Now at an inflection 

point, the Group, in the new planning cycle, will be 
making further progress in the quest for enhanced 

customer-centricity, utilisation of cutting-edge 
technology and innovation, improved operational 

efficiencies, leveraging world class talents towards 
reclaiming market leadership.

FORGING
AHEAD
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The term ‘FBN Holdings Plc’ or the ‘Group’ means FBNHoldings together with its 
subsidiaries. FBN Holdings Plc is a financial holding company incorporated in Nigeria 
on 14 October 2010. The Company was listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange 
under the ‘Other Financial Services’ section on 26 November 2012 and has issued 
and fully paid-up share capital of 35,895,292,791 ordinary shares of 50 kobo 
each (N17,947,646,396). In this Report, the abbreviations ‘Nmn’, ‘Nbn’ and ‘Ntn’ 
represent millions, billions and trillions of Naira respectively. 

FBN Holdings Plc is structured along the following business groups: Commercial 
Banking, Merchant Banking and Asset Management, and Insurance.

� The Commercial Banking business comprises First Bank of Nigeria Limited, 
FBNBank (UK) Limited, FBNBank DRC Limited, FBNBank Ghana Limited, 
FBNBank The Gambia Limited, FBNBank Guinea Limited, FBNBank Sierra Leone 
Limited, FBNBank Senegal Limited and First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited. 
FirstBank (Nigeria) is the lead entity of the Commercial Banking business.

� The Merchant Banking and Asset Management business consists of 
 FBNQuest Merchant Bank, FBNQuest Capital Limited and FBNQuest Trustees 

Limited. The subsidiaries of FBNQuest Merchant Bank Limited are FBNQuest 
Asset Management Limited and FBNQuest Securities Limited while the 
subsidiary of FBNQuest Capital Limited is FBNQuest Funds Limited. 

 
� The Insurance business comprises FBN Insurance Limited, 
 FBN General Insurance Limited and FBN Insurance Brokers Limited.

This Annual Report encompasses First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited. Unless 
otherwise stated, the profit or loss statement analysis compares the 12 months of 
December 2019 to the corresponding 12 months of 2018, and the statement of 
financial position comparison relates to the corresponding position as at 
31 December 2018. Except as otherwise disclosed, all the balances and figures 
to continuous operations. Relevant terms that are used in this document but 
not defined under applicable regulatory guidance or the International Financial 
Reporting Standards are explained in the glossary or abbreviation section of this 
report. This report is also available online at www.firstpensioncustodian.com/
download/2019 financial Report.

There will be an option to view a PDF copy of the FBNHoldings Annual Report 
as well as PDFs of certain subsidiary Reports on the Annual Report portal of the 
Investor Relations section of the FBNHoldings website.

Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout the Report may not add up 
precisely to the totals provided and percentages may not precisely reflect the 
absolute figures.
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Our Business
At First Pension Custodian Nigeria Ltd, we provide custody services for 
retirement savings accounts and other pension fund assets of licensed 
pension fund administrators for the benefit of the contributors.

Our business thrives on the value chain that ensures prompt process of 
accumulating assets from contributions by the employers of contributors, 
provide safety of the assets through effective settlement of transactions 
in the accumulated funds by the pension Fund Administrators, recovery 
thereof with all accrued entitlements and ensure pensions and retirement 
benefits are paid as and when due on the instruction of the Pension Fund 
Administrators.

We have gained considerable knowledge 
and experience with the continuous 
improvement of our processes, technology, 
services and people; and have created a 
formidable pension fund custodial service 
that provides our stakeholders with 
incomparable service experience and value. 
Doing business, the ’EPIC’ way.
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COMPANY PROFILE

First Pension Custodian Nigeria Ltd 
(FPCNL) is one of Nigeria’s leading 
pension custodians. 

Our core service offerings include: 
collecting pension contributions; 
pensions and benefit payment to 
beneficiaries from their respective 
retirement saving accounts; safe 
keeping of assets, managing real 
estate assets of the funds under 

True to our name, 
to be the custodian 

of first choice. 

Vision

To provide best 
quality custodian 

services and 
optimum protection 

of contributors’ 
assets.

Mission

�	 Entrepreneurship 
�	 Professionalism
�	 Innovation
�	 Customer Centric 

Our values –’EPIC’ have 
and will always underpin 

our Purpose.

Core Values

custody; settlement of transactions 
in financial investments such 
as equities, bonds and treasury 
bills; corporate actions across all 
categories of assets; performance 
measurement and compliance 
monitoring. 

At FPCNL, we offer pension custody 
services to 16 pension fund 
administrators, two closed pension 

fund administrators and seven 
annuities. As at 31 December 2019, 
total assets under custody amounted 
to N3.29tn. 

In driving our business, we continue 
to invest in our people and leverage 
technology to deploy innovative 
services to better serve our 
customers.
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OUR STRUCTURE

FBN Holdings Plc is a leading non-operating financial holding company in Africa. The Company provides diverse range of 
services through its divisions, which include the Commercial Banking Group, Merchant Banking and Asset Management Group, 
and Insurance Group. Through its subsidiaries, FBNHoldings offers innovative and competitive financial solutions across Africa, 
Europe and Asia. 

First Bank of Nigeria Limited

   FBNBank (UK) Limited
   FBNBank DRC Limited
   FBNBank Ghana Limited
   FBNBank The Gambia Limited
   FBNBank Guinea Limited
   FBNBank Sierra Leone Limited
   FBNBank Senegal Limited 
   First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited

COMMERCIAL BANKING

FBNQuest Merchant Bank Limited

   FBNQuest Asset Management Limited
   FBNQuest Securities Limited

FBNQuest Capital Limited 

   FBNQuest Funds Limited

FBNQuest Trustees Limited

MERCHANT BANKING AND
ASSET MANAGEMENT

FBN HOLDINGS PLC

FBN Insurance Limited

   FBN General Insurance Limited 

FBN Insurance Brokers Limited

INSURANCE

The largest subsidiary of the FBNHoldings 
Group is First Bank of Nigeria Limited 
(FirstBank), founded 126 years ago. 

FirstBank offers commercial banking 
services in Nigeria while its subsidiaries 
provide commercial banking services 
across Africa, Europe and Asia. 

FirstBank is also the parent company of 
First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited.

FBNQuest Merchant Bank Limited 
and FBNQuest Capital Limited provide 
merchant banking, asset management 
and investment banking services. 

FBNQuest Merchant Bank Limited is the 
parent company of 
FBNQuest Asset Management Limited 
and FBNQuest Securities Limited.
FBNQuest Capital Limited is the parent 
company of FBNQuest Funds Limited. 

FBNQuest Trustees Limited became a 
direct subsidiary of FBNHoldings in 2019. 
The business provides trust services to 
both private and corporate clients.

FBNHoldings is the parent company of 
FBN Insurance Limited, a life insurance 
underwriter. 

FBNInsurance offers general insurance 
services through its subsidiary, 
FBN General Insurance Limited. 

The Group also offers brokerage services 
through FBN Insurance Brokers Limited.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

GROSS EARNINGS

Gross earnings dropped as a result of a decline in fee and interest income, 
driven by regulations and depressed yield.

N7.54bn
2018: N8.13bn

7.26%    

ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY

The increase in pension assets was driven by incremental contributions and 
inflow of new funds.

N3.29tn
2018: N2.77tn

18.77%    

RETURN ON AVERAGE EQUITY

Decline in return on average equity was driven by a higher rate of increase 
in equity over net profit.

35.72%
2018: 39.13%

3.41%    

PROFIT BEFORE TAx

Decrease in profit before tax resulted from a decline in revenue and a slight 
increase in operating expenses relative to prior year.

N5.13bn
2018: N5.79n

11.40%  

RETURN ON AVERAGE ASSETS

Return on average assets dipped due to an increase in assets and decline in 
profit after tax.

27.62%
2018: 29.54%

1.92%    

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The growth in earnings per share reflects improved net profit.
N2.16

2018: N2.12
1.89%    
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Best Pension Fund Service Team in 
Nigeria  
CAPITAL FINANCE INTERNATIONAL 

The Award was presented to the 
First Pension Custodian team in 
recognition of their contribution to 
the growth and development of the 
Nigerian Pension industry.

NoN-FiNANciAl HigHligHTS

PEoPlE

visionary Management team, providing 
career enhancement opportunities and 
promoting a customer-centric mindset.

To facilitate employee engagement, 
a survey was conducted to identify 
what working for FPCNL means to 
employees, and highlighted areas for 
improvement. The results of the survey 
reveal that employees consider FPCNL 
a Company with strong values, led by a 

lEVERAgiNg TEcHNologY To DRiVE iNNoVATioN

As part of the hardware infrastructure 
refresh initiative, the enterprise 
Information Technology (IT) architecture 
design and deployment project was 
completed in 2019. The enterprise IT 
architecture provides the blueprint for an 
operating model to improve the efficiency 
of the operations of the Company.

To improve efficiency and customer 
experience, the Micro-pension USSD 
Codes Service, BAP Online Payment, 
web service for Personal Identification 
Number (PIN) enrolment for RSA and 
Micro-pension PIN were introduced.  
 

AwARD



10 FIRST PENSION CUSTODIAN NIGERIA LIMITED Annual Report and Accounts 2019

ChAiRmAn’s
stAtement

11
mAnAging DiReCtoR’s 

Review

13
FinAnCiAl 

Review

18

Strategic report



11 FIRST PENSION CUSTODIAN NIGERIA LIMITED Annual Report and Accounts 2019

ChAiRmAn’s 
stAtement 

Umar Yahaya
Chairman

First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited
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ChAiRmAn’s stAtement

The year 2019 was challenging at 
the global, regional and domestic 
levels. The threat to savings and 
pension custodians was elevated 
due to difficult macroeconomic 
conditions and hard policy choices. 

We observed greater coordination 
between monetary and fiscal 
authorities, although the monetary 
authority adopted a more heterodox 
policy stance to achieve price and 
monetary stability. 

The year was also characterised by 
negative returns on fixed-income 
investment due to the rising inflationary 
trend and the CBN’s use of unorthodox 
policy measures to boost liquidity and 
reduce interest rates. 

The stock market was for most 
of 2019, in the negative, losing 
approximately 15% in the year, despite 
the recovery that occurred towards the 
end of the year.

Operational Performance

The year was also very challenging 
for operators in the Nigerian pension 
industry, due to a number of global and 
domestic headwinds. The Company’s 
profit before tax was N5.13bn, down 
11.4% from the previous year’s 
performance of N5.79bn. In view of 
this, the Board is looking forward to 
improving the financial position of the 
Company.  

Governance and Board Development

The Board provided strategic direction 
and dedicated oversight to the business 
in continued pursuit of high standards 
in corporate governance. The Board 
continues to strive for a culture of 
open communication and challenge 
inside the boardroom, where the Board 
can hold the Management accountable 

for the execution and delivery of 
Board-approved strategy. 

Funso Sobande, an Executive Director, 
resigned from the Board effective 
January 2019. The Board appointed 
Mercy DaSilva as a Non-Executive 
Director with effect from September 
2019. Mercy is a seasoned professional 
and comes with a wealth of experience, 
which will position the Company to 
sustain its performance as one of the 
leading pension custodians in Nigeria.

We ensure the right balance of skills 
and experience within the Board, 
annually reviewing the Board’s 
composition and the diversity of 
backgrounds of Board members. You 
can read more about this review in our 
corporate governance report on page 
26 to 29.

Our People

Our employees remain the driving force 
of our progress. We are committed to 
providing resources and opportunities 
to further develop their careers towards 
attaining their potential, which is 
fundamental to our continued success. 
The business promotes an open and 
transparent culture at every level for 
the advancement of the business. 

Outlook

The International Monetary Fund 
predicted that Nigeria’s economy will 
continue its sluggish trend, with a 2.5% 
growth rate forecast for 2020. 

Rising food prices due to lower 
harvests as a result of the farmers’ and 
herders’ conflict and severe floods in 
2019, and the implementation of the 
new minimum wage, are expected to 
increase inflationary pressures during 
the year. This could force a change in 
the monetary policy stance. 

In addition, we expect increased 
competition and changing industry 
dynamics in the pension custodian 
services space. We recognise that 
our future success will depend on 
adapting our business model to provide 
quality end-to-end solutions to meet 
customer needs effectively and provide 
a competitive advantage in a rapidly 
changing environment. We are resolute 
in tapping the opportunities available to 
increase earnings, improve profitability 
and deliver returns to our shareholders. 

Finally, on behalf of my colleagues on 
the Board, I would like to express my 
sincere appreciation to our customers 
for their continued patronage and trust 
in us; to our shareholders for their 
support; and to the entire staff for their 
dedication and contributions to the 
continued success of our business. 

Thank you.

Umar Yahaya
Chairman
First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited

The Board provided strategic direction 
and dedicated oversight to the business 
in continued pursuit of high standards in 

corporate governance.
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Kunle Jinadu
Managing Director/CEO

First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited
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mAnAging DiReCtoR/Ceo’s Review 

sUstAining A leADeRshiP Position

enable contributors change to the 
PFAs of their choice, in line with 
Section 13 of the Pension Reform Act 
2014.

The smooth growth of the CPS 
depends on continued stakeholder 
collaboration. The entire Nigerian 
pension industry hinges on the ability 
to explore converging industry trends, 
adopt global industry best practices 
and invest more adventurously within 
the constraints of regulation. If this is 
not addressed, it could erode the gains 
to this point. 

The operating environment is set to 
become quite stormy, with participants 
forced to contend with relatively 
reduced income, the opening of the 
transfer window and more demands 
on statistical analysis by discerning 
contributors. 

The pension industry must also tackle 
the increasing concentration in fixed 
income, weak compliance at state 
level and potential loss of money to 
the insurance industry in the form of 
annuity. Overall, the outlook suggests 
reduced profitability.

2019 Performance 

The macro and microeconomic 
fundamentals negatively impacted 
the performance of the Company, 
which resulted in a profit before 
tax of N5.13bn, 11.4% below 2018 
(N5.79bn). This significant drop in the 
bottom line is due to several factors, 
including the regulatory-induced lower 
fees regime, divestment from 
non-pension assets under custody, and 
restriction of investment in OMO bills 
by the CBN. The Company embarked 
on several cost-containment initiatives 
to mitigate the drop-in revenue. To 
read about our financial performance, 
please refer to the ‘Financial Review’ 
section. 

Despite these conditions, we have 
continued to make good progress in 
our key focus areas. In 2019, FPCNL 
was recognised as the ‘Best Pension 
Fund Services Team in Nigeria’ by 
Capital Finance International. This 
award is a testament to our customer-
centric mindset and our aspiration to 
be the custodian of first choice.

strategic Progress

The year 2019 marks the end of our 
2017–2019 strategic planning cycle. 
As we embark on the next cycle, we 
expect increased competition and 
changes in industry dynamics, due to 
ongoing mergers and acquisitions and 
the proposed opening of the transfer 
window.Our refreshed strategic priorities focus 

on the need for a culture of excellence, 
sustainable growth and long-term returns.

Reform of the pension industry in 
Nigeria is evolving rapidly. Since the 
introduction of the Contributory 
Pension Scheme (CPS) in 2004, the 
industry has experienced phenomenal 
growth: from a deficit of N2tn in 
the form of pension liabilities, to an 
accumulation of pension fund assets 
worth about N9.58tn by the 
third-quarter of 2019.

The number of registered contributors 
under the CPS have grown to 8.85 
million (National Pension Commission, 
Pension Asset and RSA Membership), 
justifying the emphasis on the safety 
of pension funds as the bedrock. 

The quest to expand the scheme’s 
coverage is being pursued through 
transformational initiatives. One of 
these is the multichannel Micro 
Pension Plan (MPP), which is targeted 
at the informal sector and the 
self-employed, especially artisans and 
small private businesses with fewer 
than three employees. 

Another initiative is the Enhanced 
Contributor Registration System 
(ECRS), which supports the 
registration of MPP participants and is 
a major step towards the introduction 
of the transfer window, which will 
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Our refreshed strategic priorities 
focus on the need for a culture of 
excellence, sustainable growth and 
long-term returns. In our next cycle, 
we will:

� Streamline our operations to 
improve customer experience and 
drive productivity

� Invest and leverage technological 
improvements to enhance 
customer experience, maintain 
strong discipline on cost, and 
drive improved profitability

� Embed a performance-oriented 
and innovative culture, with 
emphasis on conduct and 
sustainability.

Business outlook

In 2020, the operating environment 
and global macroeconomic 
environment will be challenging in view 
of the trade tensions, amongst other 
factors. However, we remain cautiously 
optimistic and ready to harness 
potential opportunities for astounding 
performance. 

As we transition to a new cycle, 
we are confident that the focused 
execution of our strategy, investment 
in technologies, innovation and 
continuing development of our talents 
will be the source of our competitive 
advantage and enable us to meet and 
surpass the evolving needs of our 
customers and other stakeholders.

I am confident in our capability to 
continue to grow and transform our 
organisation to the delight of all our 
stakeholders. 

Kunle Jinadu
Managing Director/CEO
First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited
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vAlUe CReAtion moDel 

Creating value through unique strengths

Our model is focused on building a 
sustainable, business as a pension 
fund custodian, while simultaneously 
creating sustainable value for our 
stakeholders and supporting our 
clients to achieve their operational 
objectives. 

Our customers are at the heart of our 
business and we seek to satisfy their 
needs by providing innovative services 
to meet those evolving needs. 

The inputs for our business model 
are threefold: people, brand and 
technology. These align with our 
strategy enablers and support 
the long-term sustainable growth 
objective. We apply risk management 
principles and processes to contain 
and manage our business risks. 

In 2019, we reviewed our strategy, 
taking into consideration current and 
future realities of our business and 
operating environment. This resulted 

in new initiatives and aspirations 
aimed at transforming the culture and 
performance of FPCNL over the next 
three years (2020–2022). 

Our business strategy document 
sets out the path for our long-term 
aspirations and objectives. 

With a highly skilled and committed 
Board of Directors providing direction, 
the deeply committed Management 
team executes the strategic plan.

oUR ResoURCes oUtPUts

We are focused on building a 
sustainable profitable business 
simultaneously supporting 
our clients to achieve their 
operational and business 
objectives. 

our people

� Skills and expertise of our 
people. Our people are our 
greatest asset.

strong brand

� The strength and reputation 
of our brand. We belong 
to a leading international 
banking group with 126 
years’ history and an 
identity for consistency, 
stability and security. 

Financial

� Cost-to-income – 31.96%

� ROAE – 35.72%

� ROAA – 27.62%

We ensure enhanced 
profitability through improved 
revenue generation and cost 
optimisation.

non-financial
 
� Fostering a diverse and 

inclusive workforce

� Promoting positive conduct 
and enabling environment

� Successfully innovating 
 value-add services

vAlUe CReAteD

We create value for our stakeholders 
by leveraging our strength and group 
synergies.

Clients

We create value for our customers by 
providing leading innovative business 
solutions and value-added services by 
anticipating their needs and delivering 
end-to-end solutions for greater 
efficiencies and enhanced customer 
experience.

employees

We provide resources to develop our 
people. Through ongoing training, we 
ensure our employees are mentally and 
physically equipped to deliver on our 
promise to our clients. We empower 
our people, hold them accountable and 
reward them appropriately for a 
value-driven team. 



17 FIRST PENSION CUSTODIAN NIGERIA LIMITED Annual Report and Accounts 2019

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

RISK REVIEWGOVERNANCECORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY
& SUSTAINABILITY 

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIC REPORT

oUR ResoURCes oUtPUts vAlUe CReAteD

vAlUe CReAtion moDel 

shareholders

We continue to strive to deliver 
sustainable earnings through dividend 
and capital growth. Effective delivery 
of our business model and strategy will 
engender sustainable returns to our 
shareholders.

suppliers and Business Partners

We encourage all our suppliers and 
contractors to adopt responsible 
business policies and practices for 
mutual benefit. We continue to uphold 
the values of integrity and fairness in 
our relationships with all stakeholders.

Regulators/industry bodies/government

Engage applicable bodies to support the 
effective functioning and sustainable 
landscape of the pension industry and 
the broader economy in the long-term.

Community

Collaborate with local partners 
to promote social and economic 
development.

technology

� Running a sustainable 
business requires innovative 
solutions that create 

 long-term value. 

 FPCNL leverages 
Information Technology 
to drive an efficient and 
effective operations for 
the benefit of our various 
clients.
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sUmmARY oF FinAnCiAl ResUlts

Profitability Ratios

Going into 2020, we hope to 
improve our revenue to achieve a 
competitive cost-to-income ratio.

Basic earnings per share increased 
1.89% to N2.16, primarily due to 
increase in the profit for the year. 
However, other profitability ratios 
lagged behind prior year due to 
reduced revenue.

Profit Before tax (Nbn)
-11.40%

3.41

Dec ‘15 Dec ‘16 Dec ‘18Dec ‘17 Dec ‘19

4.05 5.795.77 5.13

Gross Earnings
-7.26%

Fee Income
-6.86%

Interest and other Income
-8.72%

gross earnings and Components (Nbn)

Dec ‘15 Dec ‘16 Dec ‘18Dec ‘17 Dec ‘19

4.95
4.18

0.77

5.55
4.75

0.80

7.81

5.96

1.85

8.13

6.41

1.72

7.54
5.97

1.57

Bunmi Aderonmu
Chief Financial Officer

FinAnCiAl Review

The year 2019 was characterised by 
volatility in global financial markets 
due to escalating global trade 
tensions. In Nigeria, equity markets 
remained volatile with a decline of 
15% in the levels during the year. 
The year also witnessed inflationary 
pressures, a high unemployment rate 
of 23.1% and an underemployment 
rate of 16.6%.

Despite challenging economic 
conditions, we delivered on our 
various strategic initiatives targeted 
at building a sustainable profitable 
business. 

income statement Analysis

The performance of the Company for 
2019 was negatively impacted by the 
regulatory-induced downward review 
of fees, transfer of non-pension 
assets, weak market performance 
and the restriction of participation 
in the OMO auction, which led to 
reduced yields. 

Despite challenging economic 
conditions, we delivered on our various 

strategic initiatives targeted at building a 
sustainable profitable business.
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FinAnCiAl Review

Financial Position Analysis

We made a final dividend payment 
of N2.54bn during the year to our 
shareholders for the 2018 financial year.

total Assets (Nbn)
9.46%

9.56

Dec ‘15 Dec ‘16 Dec ‘18Dec ‘17 Dec ‘19

10.89 14.9013.74 16.31

Total assets were N16.31bn as at 
year end, an increase of 9.46% on 
prior year. Investible funds recorded 
a drop year-on-year, due to capital 
project spend on the new office 
accommodation, while fixed assets 
increased by 147.52%. 

The application of IFRS 16 required a 
reclassification of lease from Other 
assets to Right of use assets, with 
no impact on the financials. Please 
see Note 2.2 for further details on 
IFRS 16.

Assets under Custody

During the year, the Company 
discontinued dealings in non-pension 
assets under custody in compliance 
with regulatory directive. Total assets 
(pension and non-pension) increased 
by 18.77% to N3.29tn (2018: 
N2.77tn).

We successfully grew our pension 
assets under custody by 19.20% to 
N3.29tn (2018: N2.76tn) in 2019, 
despite the challenging operating and 
competitive environment. 

Total Assets under Custody Pension Assets Non-Pension Assets

Assets under Custody (Ntn)

Dec ‘15 Dec ‘16 Dec ‘18Dec ‘17 Dec ‘19

2.11 1.81

0.30

2.51
1.96

0.55

3.04
2.42

0.62

2.772.76

0.01

3.29
3.29

0.00

This was assisted largely by new businesses 
and newly added volumes from fresh 
contributions.

outlook 2020

we remain optimistic about growth 
in the medium to long-term. We 
expect the refreshed priorities for the 
next strategy cycle to improve our 
efficiency and place us in a better 
position for profitable growth. 

We are significantly increasing 
investment in technology-enabled 
initiatives to effectively meet our 
customers’ needs and generate 
sustainable returns for our 
shareholders.

We anticipate the macro-operating 
environment to be challenging in 
the year ahead, with increased 
competition and changing industry 
dynamics. While sentiment remains 
more cautious in the near-term, 
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Cross-section of female and male employees at First Pension Custodian Nigeria Ltd celebrating the 2019 International Women’s Day and International 
Men’s Day

EmpowERing ouR pEoplE

at FpCnl, our people are our greatest assets and are critical to the success and survival of our business. our people are 
encouraged to pursue their ambitions and be successful in their professional and personal lives. We are committed to 
bringing out the best in our people by establishing and maintaining a work environment that that will make them happy 
and healthy. our vision is to create a culture where employees have access to resources to continue to make them happy 
and healthy.

Developing our people and finding 
the right opportunities for them to 
succeed is a priority for the Company. 

In 2019, we continued to focus on 
employee capacity-building in a bid 
to drive exceptional results across the 
Company. We created talent pools and 
prepared candidates for succession 
to Management roles over the short, 
medium and long term. 

We provided training for all staff on 
Compliance and Risk Management, 
Leadership and Management, as well 
as awareness-raising activities on 
various health related issues; such 
as a forum with health experts who 
encouraged our people to make 
positive lifestyle changes.

We are committed to promoting 
equality in the workplace and creating 
an inclusive culture where our people 
can realise their full potential and 
positively contribute to the Company. 

We operate an equal opportunity 
policy for all employees and put 
in place measures to prevent 
discrimination and harassment.

We understand that gender equality 
can only be reached by focusing on 
all genders. We also recognise and 
celebrate both International Women’s 
and Men’s Day. 

In 2019, we organised sessions where 
key issues affecting productivity 
and health in the workplace were 
discussed. 

As part of the ongoing engagement 
with our people, we conducted an 
employee survey and recorded a high 
level of staff participation. Feedback 
indicated that the majority of our 
staff feel gainfully engaged. 

Subsequently, we developed and 
implemented action plans in response 
to the feedback. In line with our 
commitment, we continue to review 
our people agenda in view of the 
evolving workforce requirements to 
ensure we remain the employer of 
choice.
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Community SuppoRt

by providing bespoke solutions to 
meet their long-term business needs. 
To achieve this, we strive for a 
balance between operational flexibility 
and a tight control to consistently 
meet our clients’ evolving needs. 

Our actions are predicated on the 
culture that emphasises the highest 
level of ethics and integrity. 

Good business conduct is the 
bedrock of all our client interactions.

Client Engagement 

Client interests are factored into our 
business strategies. Our clients, like 
our people, are our most valuable 
assets. We continue to engage 
with our clients to understand and 
respond to their various requirements 

We believe that regular and 
constructive dialogue with 
stakeholders is central to delivering 
sustainable and responsible business.

We strive to operate as a sustainable 
and responsible business, in line 
with our purpose, delivering value 
to all stakeholders, including the 
communities where we operate. 

At FPCNL, our focus areas are 
community development, education 
and health sector. 

In 2019, we commissioned the 
electrical rewiring and complete 
restoration of the back fence of the 
Old People’s Home, Yaba, Lagos.

At FPCNL, operating with integrity is 
central to how we do business. We 
are committed to making a difference 
in all we undertake.

Our core values of professionalism 
and integrity underpins and extends 
to all facets of our operations. 

BEFORE AFTER

Engagement with Regulators

We engage constructively with 
relevant authorities to support the 
effective functioning of the pension 
industry and the economy. We 
are committed to complying with 
legislation and other regulatory 
requirements applicable to our 
businesses and operations. 

At FPCNL, we engage government 
and regulators in many ways, such 
as; through dialogue, submission of 
responses to formal consultations 
and participating in industry working 
groups. 

In 2020, our engagement activities 
will focus on regulations and 
legislations associated with the 
sustainability of the pension industry. 
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CHAIRmAN’s INtRoDUCtIoN

As a Board, it is our responsibility 
to create a solid foundation of good 
corporate governance, which remains 
the best tool to deliver long-term 
sustainable value for the benefit of 
our shareholders and stakeholders. 
To achieve this, FPCNL has a robust 
corporate governance framework, 
which provides systems of checks and 
controls to ensure accountability and 
promote sound decision-making. 

We also have policies and practices 
in place which ensure that the Board, 
Board Committees, and FPCNL as an 
organisation operate effectively. 
The Board recognises that governance 
is not static but must adapt to 
continually changing risks and changes 
in the regulatory environment. The 
corporate governance arrangements 
are therefore reviewed regularly to 
ensure they remain effective.

Our approach to culture and values is 
led by the Board with clear emphasis 
on setting the ‘tone from the top’, 
which supports our strategy. This 
is the Board focus to ensure every 
aspect of our management approach, 
such as targets and incentives, 
organisational structures, and values 

and behaviours, support the right 
culture, and is cascaded through 
our governance structure to every 
part of the business. We recognise 
that everyone is different and a 
key element to achieving our vision 
is having a diverse and inclusive 
workforce. 

Board Composition

In the course of the year, Funso 
Sobande, an Executive Director, 
resigned from the Board with effect 
from 25 January 2019. Mercy DaSilva 
joined FPCNL as a Non-Executive 
Director, effective 19 September 
2019, as approved by the National 
Pension Commission (PenCom). Her 
experience of financial services brings 

additional knowledge and perspective 
to the Board and reflects a continuing 
effort to have the right mix of 
individuals on the Board. Mercy’s 
appointment also brings female 
representation on the Board to 29%. 

New Governance Code 2019

PenCom issued industry-specific 
Corporate Governance Guidelines for 
Pension Fund Operators. This followed 
the release of the Nigerian Code of 
Corporate Governance (‘the Code’) 
in January 2019 by the Financial 
Reporting Council of Nigeria. The 
Code highlights key principles that 
seek to institutionalise corporate 
governance best practices in Nigerian 
companies. Certain enhancements 
have already been made to our 
governance practices to reflect the 
requirements of the new Code and 
Regulations, which come into effect 
on 2 January 2020.

outlook

We will continue to enhance our 
governance practices in line with the 
relevant Codes to promote the 
long-term sustainability and success 
of First Pension Custodian Nigeria Ltd. 

As a Board, it is our responsibilityto create a 
solid foundation of good corporate governance, 

which remains the best tool to deliver 
long-term sustainable value for the benefit of 
our shareholders and our wider stakeholders. 

Umar Yahaya
Chairman
First Pension Custodian 
Nigeria Ltd
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LEADERsHIP

Umar Yahaya
Chairman
Appointed October 2014

skills and Experience

Umar Yahaya has extensive 
executive-level management 
experience in commercial and 
investment banking. He also has 
diverse board-level experience 
across various sectors, gained from 
current and previous executive and 
non-executive directorships. He has 
served on the Boards of PZ Cussons 
Foundation, First Bank of Nigeria Ltd, 

FBNQuest Merchant Bank Ltd and the 
former New Africa Merchant Bank. He 
was the President of Kaduna Chamber 
of Commerce and a member of the 
Nigeria Vision 2020 Business Support 
Group.

As well as his broad experience and 
analytical mind, Umar drives robust 
debate and a culture of openness in 
the boardroom and promotes strong 
board governance values.

He holds both Bachelor’s and Master’s 
degrees in Business Administration 
from Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria. 
He has an Advanced Diploma in 
Management from Harvard Business 
School, and an Executive Management 
Diploma in Strategy and Organisation 
from Stanford Graduate School of 
Business, both in the USA.

Key Current Appointments

Non-Executive Director Associated 
Haulages Nigeria Ltd; Non-Executive 
Director Fidelity Bank Plc; 
Non-Executive Director PZ Cussons 
Foundation; Non-Executive Director 
Leadway Assurance Co.; 
Non-Executive Director Courier 
Masters.

Committees

None.

The Board is the highest decision-making 
organ in the Company. It is currently 
composed of seven members, including six 
Non-Executive Directors and one Executive 
Director. One Director is an Independent 
Non-Executive Director in compliance with 
the guidelines provided by PenCom. 

Our Directors possess the right balance 
of expertise, skills and experience 
to provide effective oversight of the 
business. The number and status of the 
Non-Executive Directors ensure that 
adequate contributions are made to the 
Board’s deliberations.

Board of Directors
 

Board Diversity

5

2

Female Male

Board tenure

0 - 3 years 3 - 6 years 6 - 9 years

5

1

1

2
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LEADERsHIP

Kunle Jinadu
Managing Director/Chief 
Executive Officer 
Appointed April 2013 

skills and Experience

Kunle Jinadu has over 30 years’ 
extensive local and international 
banking, finance and global custody 
experience. He has attended 
several training and development 
programmes locally and abroad. 
He brings his broad experience 

to bear in performing his function 
as the MD/CEO. He worked with 
ANZ Grindlays Merchant Bank Ltd 
(Stanbic Bank Nigeria Ltd), where he 
held various management positions, 
including General Manager, Corporate 
Finance; Head, Global Custody; and 
Managing Director/CEO of Stanbic 
Equities Ltd. He played prominent 

roles in the establishment of three 
out of the four pioneer pension fund 
custodians during the pension reform 
implementation. He is an alumnus 
of the London Business School and 
Harvard Business School.

Kunle has a BSc in Accounting. He is 
a Fellow of the Chartered Institute 
of Accountants and of the Chartered 
Institute of Stockbrokers.

Key Current Appointments

Non-Executive Director, Tiddo 
Securities Ltd

Committees

Finance and General Purpose, 
Governance.

Dr. Bayo odeniyi
Independent 
Non-Executive Director
Appointed April 2009

skills and Experience 

Dr. Bayo Odeniyi brings his 
experience in research and consulting 
to bear on the activities of the Board. 
He has considerable experience in 
the planning and implementation, 
monitoring and evaluation of 
community development projects 
from his previous public service 
appointments. 

Dr. Odeniyi was a lecturer at the Tai 
Solarin University of Education, Ogun 
state. He had previously worked 
with the Lagos State Ministry of 
Agriculture and Co-operative as a 
veterinary officer, before joining the 
National Animal Production Research 
Institute as a Research Fellow. He 
was the pioneer project officer of 
the Institute’s Small Ruminants 
Multiplication Outstation.

He is a strong advocate of the 
application of new technology for 
effective operations and customer 
satisfaction, which directly supports 
FPCNL’s strategy.

He is a Doctor of Veterinary 
Medicine, has an MSc in Preventive 
Veterinary Public Health, and an 
MBA.

Key Current Appointments

Chairman, Clear Sight International 
(CSI) Foundation, Nigeria

Committees

Audit, Risk and Compliance 
(Chairman), Finance and General 
Purpose, Governance.
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Ijeoma Nwogwugwu
Non-Executive Director
Appointed April 2014

skills and Experience

Ijeoma Nwogwugwu has a wealth 
of experience and expertise 
embracing both the private and 
public sectors as a banker, financial 
analyst, business strategist and 

journalist, having worked in Merchant 
Bank of Africa, the Bureau of 
Public Enterprises and THISDAY 
Newspapers. A member of the 
Nigerian Union of Journalists and the 
Nigerian Guild of Editors, she served 
as the Group Executive Director, 

THISDAY Newspaper Group and sat 
on the board of the Nigerian Security 
Printing and Minting Company Ltd, 
Daily Times of Nigeria Plc and the 
National Hospital, Abuja. 

She has a BSc in Accounting and 
a postgraduate qualification in 
International Housing Finance.

Key Current Appointments

Managing Director of Arise News 
Channel Africa; Independent 
Non-Executive Director, Ikeja Electric.

Committees

Audit, Risk and Compliance, Finance 
and General Purpose (Chairperson).

Dr. Philip olufunwa 
Non-Executive Director
Appointed July 2014 

member of the Institute of Directors 
in the UK. A former Board member 
of Central London Health, and a 
former Director of the Westminster 
Clinical Commissioning Group within 
the United Kingdom’s National Health 
Service.

skills and Experience

Dr. Philip Olufunwa has strong 
corporate governance experience, 
having served on the Boards of 
several companies. He is also a 

Dr. Olufunwa has Bachelor’s degree 
in Medicine and Surgery. He is a 
member of the Royal College of 
Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, 
and a Fellow of the Royal Society of 
Medicine.

Key Current Appointments

Principal Partner, Westbourne Green 
Surgery; formerly Clinical Lead for 
Community Gynaecology, Central 
London.

Committees

Audit, Risk and Compliance, 
Governance (Chairman).
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LeADeRshiP

Dr. Remi Oni 
Non-Executive Director
Appointed December 2016 

skills and experience

Dr. Remi Oni has extensive 
experience of business management 
and operational performance culture, 
and is currently Executive Director, 
Corporate Banking at First Bank of 
Nigeria Ltd. He brings significant 
leadership and strategic oversight 
experience to the Board, from both 
current and previous roles.

He is a Doctor of Veterinary 
Medicine and holds both an MBA in 
Finance and an MSc in Public Health 
and Preventive Medicine. He is an 
honorary member of the Chartered 
Institute of Bankers of Nigeria, 
and a member of the Equipment 
Leasing Association of Nigeria and 
the Nigerian Veterinary Medical 
Association.

Key Current Appointments

Executive Director, Corporate 
Banking, FirstBank Ltd; Non-Executive 
Director FBNBank UK Ltd; Non-
Executive Director Airtel Nigeria Ltd

Committees

Finance and General Purpose, 
Governance.

Dr. Oni joined FirstBank from Standard 
Chartered Bank, Lagos, Nigeria, where 
he held various senior and executive 
roles including Executive Director, 
Corporate and Institutional Banking, 
Nigeria and West Africa. He also had 
concurrent primary responsibilities for 
the International Corporate Clients 
Segment business for Standard 
Chartered Bank in West Africa. 

mercy Dasilva 
Non-Executive Director
Appointed September 2019 

skills and experience 

Mercy DaSilva is a seasoned 
professional with over 26 years of 
experience in finance, accounting, 
human resources, information 
systems and administration. She is 
the founder and CEO of Merant 
Financial Group, a renowned 
accounting, tax and consulting firm 

based in Maryland, USA, and has 
served as Chairman of the Board of 
Trustees of the USA chapter of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Nigeria (ICAN). Mercy is versed in 
the financial management of 
non-profit associations and 
institutions, and with both public and 
private accounting.

Mercy has a BSc in Accounting 
and an MBA and is a Chartered 
Global Management Accountant 
and a Fellow of the Association of 
Chartered Accountants. 

She is a member of the American 
Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants, the Maryland 
Association of CPAs, ICAN, Maryland 
Society of Accountants, National 
Association of Female Executives, and 
Association of Certified Anti-Money 
Laundering Specialists. 
 
Key Current Appointments

CEO, Merant Financial

Committees

Audit, Risk and Compliance, 
Governance.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Kunle Jinadu
Managing Director/CEO

Anike Jaiyeola
Head, Trade Process and Settlement

Akin Denton
Head, Business Development/Client Services

Wole Fanimokun                                             
Head, Contributions Management

Muyiwa Fagbenro
Head, Information Technology           

Bunmi Aderonmu 
Chief Financial Officer

Tunde Folayan
Chief Risk Officer                         
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EFFECtIVENEss

the Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company’s strategy is implemented, and adequate policies and 
processes are in place to protect the Company’s assets and reputation.

The Board also has a charter reviewed 
periodically, which sets out the 
Board’s responsibilities and specifies 
the matters reserved for it. These 
include the review, approval and 
monitoring of the Company’s strategy 
and internal audit plan and overseeing 
the effectiveness and adequacy of the 
Company’s internal control functions. 
The Board also receives reports from 
Management on the effectiveness and 
adequacy of the Company’s internal 
control systems.

The Chairman and the Chief 
Executive Officer’s roles are assumed 
by different individuals, ensuring 
a balance of power and authority. 
The Chairman has the overall 
responsibility for the leadership 
of the Board and for ensuring 
its effectiveness, while the Chief 
Executive Officer manages and leads 
the business with the support of 
the Management. The day-to-day 
management of the Company and its 
financial and operational performance 
are the responsibility of the Managing 
Director/CEO.

The Board has three standing 
committees and one ad hoc 
committee that assist in discharging 
its responsibilities. These committees 
report to the Board regularly and 
have Board-approved charters that 
specify their terms of reference. The 
committees consist of a minimum of 
three Directors and the Board reviews 
their membership periodically.

The role of the Chairman and other Board members are set out below:

Chairman

� Leadership and management of 
the Board and its governance;

� Sets Board meeting agendas to 
ensure that the Board devotes its 
time and attention to the right 
matters;

� Ensures Directors receive 
accurate, timely and relevant 
information and keeps them 
advised on key developments 
to enable the Board to operate 
effectively;

� Promotes a culture of openness 
and debate; and

� Ensures cordial relations between 
Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors.

managing Director/CEo

� ensures that the Directors 
are properly informed, and 
that sufficient information 
is provided to the Board to 
enable the Directors to form 
appropriate judgements;

� ensures the company operates 
within approved budgets and 
within all regulatory limits; 

� Develops and recommends to 
the Board the annual operating 
and capital budget, and on 
approval of the budget, to fully 
implement the plan; and

� engages with stakeholders and 
shareholders regularly on the 
progress of the company.

� responsible for the executive 
leadership and managing the 
day-to-day operations the 
company;

� ensures the company has 
appropriate systems in place to 
enable it to conduct its activities 
both lawfully and ethically;

� Manages the company within 
established policies; maintains 
a regular policy review process, 
and revises or develops policies 
for presentation to the Board;

� ensures that the company 
maintains high standards of 
corporate governance and social 
responsibility wherever it does 
business;
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Independent Non-Executive Director

� employs neutral, specialised 
skills towards achieving 
a balance of knowledge, 
skills, judgement and other 
directional resources;

� Serves as a check to the 
Management by providing 
unbiased and independent 
views to the Board; and

� Helps the Board of the 
company to get the most out 
of its businesses by providing 
objective inputs to strategic 
thinking and decision-making 
while ensuring full compliance 
with statutory rules and 
regulations.

Company secretary  

� Advises the Board and ensures 
good information flows and 
comprehensive practical 
support are provided to 
Directors; 

� Maintains the Company’s 
Corporate Governance 
Framework and organises 
Directors’ induction and 
training; 

� Advises the Board through the 
Chairman on all governance 
matters and regulatory affairs; 
and

� Ensures that Company 
information is accessible to all 
qualified stakeholders.

Non-Executive Director

� Brings independence and 
external dimensions to the 
Board’s activities;

� Effectively and constructively 
challenges Management;

� Helps develop strategy and 
monitors its success within 
the risk appetite and control 
framework set by the Board;

� Promotes the long-term 
success of the Company for 
the benefit of our shareholders;

� Oversees risks and controls;

� Ensures that the Company acts 
responsibly, having due regard 
to its reputation by doing the 
right thing, the right way, for 
all our stakeholders;

� Ensures the integrity of 
financial information and that 
financial controls and systems 
of risk management are robust 
and defensible; and

� Determines appropriate levels 
of remuneration and succession 
planning for Executive 
Directors. 
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Attendance at Board meetings

In 2019, the Board of First Pension Custodian Nigeria Ltd met five times. The record of attendance is provided below:

NAmEs

Umar Yahaya

Kunle Jinadu

Ijeoma Nwogwugwu

Dr. Bayo Odeniyi

Dr. Remi Oni

Dr. Philip Olufunwa

Mercy DaSilva*

JANUARY 
24

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

NYA*

JULY 
18

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

NYA*

APRIL 
17

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

NYA*

NoVEmBER 
26

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

NoVEmBER 
26

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

*NYA – Not Yet Appointed

The Board meets regularly and at least once every 
quarter. Directors are expected to attend all quarterly 
meetings of the Board and this is a requirement for 
re-election. 

Relevant reports on the Company’s financial and 
operational performance as well as updates on the 
implementation of the Company’s strategic initiatives 
are forwarded to the Directors ahead of the 
scheduled meetings.

Other papers considered by the Board at its meetings include:

Performance rating 
reports from clients

report of the 
Managing Director

report of all 
committees of the 

Board

report on Human 
resources Initiatives

To ensure proper records of the meetings held, 
minutes of Board meetings are forwarded to 
members for their review before the next scheduled 
meeting. Minutes of previous meetings are approved 

by the Board at its next meeting. The Chairman and 
the Secretary sign all approved minutes, which are 
kept in the custody of the company secretary.
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Focus Areas in 2019

Deliberation of Budget 
Implementation

Deliberation on the company’s 
Strategic Plan

consideration of annual accounts, 
Quarterly Performance reports and 

Half Year reports 

consideration of the regulator’s 
examination report

review of existing 
charters and Policies

Other focus areas included:

� Performance reports by the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

� Board appraisal exercise and outcome

� Customer acquisition and retention 

� Review of risk management, and internal control processes and procedures

� Consideration and review of the adequacy of the Company’s Information 
Technology infrastructure 

� Corporate culture and values
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EFFECtIVENEss AND EVALUAtIoN

In 2019, the Company evaluated the 
composition of the Board, appraised it 
against set annual goals and ensured 
that the training plan was adequate to 
enable the Directors to carry out their 
responsibilities.

Board Composition

The Governance Committee regularly 
reviews the Board structure, size and 
composition (its competencies, age, 
skills, knowledge, experience, diversity 
and background) in line with the 
needs of the Company and makes 
recommendations to the Board on the 
optimal mix. The Company has a 
well-defined structure and process 
for the appointment of new 
Directors. Subject to the satisfactory 
performance evaluation and approval 
of the National Pension Commission, 
Non-Executive Directors are appointed 
for an initial term of three years, 
renewable for further terms of three 
years, while Executive Directors 
are appointed for an initial term of 
three years renewable. The Board is 
composed of more Non-Executive 
Directors than Executive Directors. 

The Company has a succession policy 
which provides the framework for 
the succession of Directors and Top 
Management.

training

The Company training policy provides 
the framework that guides the 
planning and structuring of training 
programmes for Directors in line with 
the Company’s goals and objective. 

All Directors are expected to keep 
their skills up to date and familiarise 
themselves with the laws and 
regulations that guide the Company’s 
business.

In line with the training policy, 
Directors attend training programmes 
every other year. The feedback from 
the annual Board evaluation exercise 
feeds into the annual training plan. 
In 2019, the Directors attended 
relevant training programmes on 
corporate governance, the economy 
and the pension industry, which were 
facilitated by external consultants.

Appraisal

We annually evaluate our Board to 
improve its effectiveness. In 2019, the 
evaluation was conducted by external 
consultants KPMG Professional 
Services. The evaluation was a 
360-degree online survey covering 
Directors’ self-assessment, peer 
assessment and evaluation of the 
Board and the Committees.

The topics covered by the exercise 
includes:

� Composition of the Board 

� Performance of the Board 
Committees

� Leadership and strategy

� Performance monitoring and 
evaluation

� Accountability and audit

� Communication to stakeholders

� Risk management and internal 
control

� Succession planning and human 
resources management

The exercise included the review of 
key governance documents relating 
to the areas of Board responsibility 
stated above, facilitation of online peer 
assessments and one-on-one interview 
sessions with each Director to obtain 
their perception of the effectiveness 
of the Board and Board Committees’ 
oversight on the Company.

The reports and recommendations 
at the end of the exercise, which 
comprised specific recommendations 
for further improving the Board’s 
governance practices were presented 
to the Board. This included the need 
to improve the adequacy of risk 
management report to the Board.

maintaining an Ethical Culture

The Company has robust policies 
and processes in place to instil and 
promote good governance, the right 
values and ethical culture. The Board 
charters and other governance 
policies are reassessed and reviewed 
every three (3) years or earlier as 
may be required. The Company applies 
its core values to business decisions 
and operations as detailed below:
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Conflict of Interest and Related Party 
transactions 

The Company has a Conflict 
of Interest and Related Party 
Transactions Policy and Procedures, 
which defines the framework within 
which Directors and Management 
staff must disclose an actual or 
potential conflict of interest and 
related party transactions. The Policy 
mandates Directors to declare their 
financial interests in any contract or 
arrangement in institutions, companies 
or partnerships in which he or she is 
a director, officer, servant, creditor or 
holder of substantial shares above five 
per cent or other securities.

The Policy requires each Director 
and Management staff to declare 
upon appointment and annually, any 
contract in which he or she has an 
interest and details procedures to 
ensure adequate identification of 
Directors’ related party interests.

The Company Secretary maintains 
a conflict of interest register, which 
is updated regularly and referenced 
when business transactions are being 
considered. 

The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance 
Committee is responsible for 
reviewing and ratifying related party 
transactions.

Business Code of Conduct 

The Company has a Directors’ 
Code of Conduct and an Employee 
Code Conduct, which describe the 
standards of ethical behaviour that 
each Director and employee is 
expected to uphold. Each Director 
and employee is expected to submit 
an annual declaration affirming 
compliance with the Code. 

This Code is reviewed to meet the 
requirements of any relevant statute 
or the business interests of the 
Company every three (3) years or 
earlier as may be required, subject to 
the approval of the Board of Directors 
of the Company.

Every Director signs and submits an 
annual declaration (in the prescribed 
form) before 31 January every 
year, affirming compliance with the 
provisions of this Code.

The Code of Conduct for employees 
specifies appropriate and inappropriate 
behaviours and conduct, as well as 
procedures for reporting, dealing 
with and sanctioning inappropriate 
behaviours within the organisation.

Access to Independent advice

In line with the Board and Board 
Committee Charters, the Board and 
its Committee have the power to 
obtain advice and assistance from 
independent professional advisers and 
experts as it deems necessary to carry 
out its duties effectively and to retain 
same at the Company’s expense, 
subject to the prior approval of the 
Chairman. 
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Dr. Philip olufunwa 
Chairman

CommIttEE REPoRts

The Board exercises its oversight responsibilities through its three standing committees, each of which has a charter 
that clearly defines its purpose, composition and structure, frequency of meetings, duties, tenure and reporting lines.

The Company has in place the following Board Committees:

EFFECtIVENEss

NAmEs

Dr. Philip Olufunwa

Dr. Bayo Odeniyi

Dr. Remi Oni

JANUARY         
23

ü

ü

ü

JULY 
17

ü

ü

ü

 APRIL 
16

ü

ü

ü

NoVEmBER 
25

ü

ü

ü

Key Responsibilities 

� Determining Board composition, 
designing and executing the 
process for the appointments 
of new Board members and 
removal of non-performing Board 
members; 

� Developing and maintaining an 
appropriate corporate governance 
framework for the Company;

� Developing appropriate policies 
for the remuneration of 
Directors, both Executive and 

 Non-Executive;

� Ensuring proper reporting and 
disclosure of the Company’s 
corporate governance to 
stakeholders; and

� Ensuring proper succession 
planning for the Company.

Key Areas of Focus for 2019

� Reviewed Executives’ prior-year 
 performance evaluation and 
 incentives payment 

implementation in line with 
agreed framework;

� Ensured the implementation 
of the recommendation from 
the annual Board performance 
appraisal;

� Monitored the plan for identifying, 
assessing and enhancing 
competencies of principal officers 
based on the Company’s strategy 
requirement;

� The executive succession planning 
process, with focus on the 
identification, development and 
readiness of successors;

� Successions for key Board 
appointments, and a plan to deal 
with upcoming retirements;

� The continuous review of the 
Board’s governance framework 
and appropriate recommendations 
made to the Board to ensure that 
they are consistent with best 
practice.

BoARD GoVERNANCE CommIttEE mEmBERsHIP

� Dr. Philip Olufunwa

� Dr. Bayo Odeniyi

� Dr. Remi Oni

Attendance at the Board Governance Committee meetings in 2019

In 2019, the Board Governance Committee met four times. The record of attendance is provided below:
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Ijeoma Nwogwugwu 
Chairperson

EFFECtIVENEss

BoARD FINANCE AND GENERAL PURPosE CommIttEE mEmBERsHIP

� Ijeoma Nwogwugwu

� Dr. Bayo Odeniyi

� Dr. Remi Oni

� Kunle Jinadu

Attendance at the Board Finance and General Purpose Committee meetings in 2019

In 2019, the Board Finance and General Purpose Committee met four times. The record of attendance is provided below:

NAmEs

Ijeoma Nwogwugwu

Dr. Bayo Odeniyi

Dr. Remi Oni

Kunle Jinadu

Funso Sobande*

JANUARY
23

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

APRIL 
16

ü

ü

ü

ü

x

JULY
17

ü

ü

ü

ü

-

NoVEmBER 
23

ü

ü

ü

ü

-

Key Responsibilities

� Formulating the annual budget of 
the Company;

� Establishing financial policies and 
plans;

� Establishing adequate policies 
on recruitment, training and 
development, promotion, 
resignation, dismissal, retirement 
and conditions of service of 
all staff excluding Executive 
Directors;

� Establishing strategic alternatives 
available to the Company to 
enhance shareholder value; 

� Reviewing and providing oversight 
of technology and innovation 
matters. The Committee also 
ensures that the Information 
Technology department closely 
supports the Company’s mission 
and objectives.

Key Areas of Focus for 2019

� Implementation of the Company’s 
budget, including oversight 
of financial performance and 
achievement of financial metrics;

� Monitoring of the Company’s 
technology competitiveness, 
including effectiveness of 
its technological efforts and 
innovation;

� Reviewed and recommended 
matters relating to staff welfare 
and conditions of service to the 
Board for approval; 

� Reviewed the Company’s 
 short-medium and long-term 

financing options/sources;

� Ensured alignment between the 
Company’s strategic objectives 
and operational/technology plans.

* Absent
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Dr. Bayo odeniyi 
Chairman

EFFECtIVENEss

BoARD AUDIt, RIsK AND ComPLIANCE CommIttEE mEmBERsHIP

� Dr. Bayo Odeniyi

� Ijeoma Nwogwugwu

� Dr. Philip Olufunwa

Attendance at the Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee meetings in 2019

In 2019, the Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee met four times. The record of attendance is provided below:

Key Responsibilities

� The integrity of the financial 
statements and financial 
reporting process;

� The identification, assessment 
and management of the array of 
risks facing the Company;

� The evaluation of the 
independence and performance 
of the external and internal audit 
functions;

� The effectiveness of the system 
of internal controls, accounting 
and operating procedures; 

� Ensuring compliance with legal 
and regulatory requirements.

Key Areas of Focus in 2019

� Integrity and completeness of the 
Company’s financial reporting; 

� Oversight of the independence 
and objectivity of the external 
auditors;

� Adequacy, independence and 
effectiveness of internal audit 
functions;

� Quarterly review of Internal audit, 
Risk management, Control and 
Compliance reports; 

� Approval of plans, policies 
and manuals for Audit, Risk, 
Compliance and Internal Control 
functions;

� Monitoring external reporting to 
ensure its consistency with legal 
obligations.

Priorities in 2020

� Review and recommend plans, 
policies and programmes of 
Internal Audit, Compliance, 
internal Control and Risk 
Departments to the Board for 
approval;

� Review and approve 
Whistleblowing Policy and 
Procedure manual;

� Ensure that Internal Audit, 
Control, Risk and Compliance 
functions are equipped with 
appropriate tools and personnel;

� Review and approve Enterprise 
Risk Management Framework to 
reflect current realities;

� Review and approve Conflict 
of Interest and Related Party 
Transactions Policy and 
Procedures;

NAmEs

Dr. Bayo Odeniyi

Ijeoma Nwogwugwu

Dr. Philip Olufunwa*

JANUARY         
23

ü

ü

ü

JULY 
17

ü

ü

ü

 APRIL 
16

ü

ü

ü

NoVEmBER 
23

ü

ü

x

* Absent
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� Review Internal Audit, Control, 
Risks and Compliance reports 
quarterly and ensure timely 
resolution of issues raised;

� Ensure that staff of these 
departments are adequately 
trained;

� Enhance the level of information 
provided to and interaction with 
stakeholders;

� Adequate monitoring of business 
and regulatory environments.

In order to ensure that the Committee 
remains effective, every year the 
Board appoints an external consultant 
to perform an independent review 
of the Committee to evaluate its 
performance. The last review was 
concluded in February 2020 and 
the results found the Committee to 
be thorough and fully effective in 
meeting its objectives.
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ACCoUNtABILItY

An accountability system is defined and formalised at all levels of the organisation through organisation charts, job 
descriptions and delegations of powers. 

The Board of Directors, with the 
support of the Board Audit, Risk and 
Compliance Committee (BARCC), 
ensures that the internal control 
functions are operating properly. The 
BARCC ensures that Management 
implements internal control and risk 
management procedures based on 
the risks identified, to achieve the 
organisation’s objectives. 

The Management is responsible for 
designing and deploying specific 
components of this internal control 
and risk management system within 
each area of responsibility. 

The Compliance and Risk department 
continually aims to strengthen 
the assessment of the role and 
involvement of all employees in 

terms of internal control. Training 
initiatives tailored to the various 
stakeholders involved in the internal 
control process are regularly 
launched within the organisation.

To this end, we have taken extensive 
measures to increase transparency, 
establish frameworks for financial 
accountability and be good stewards.

Accountability

The Management of First Pension custodian 
is responsible for the company’s activities 
and disclosing the results in a transparent 
manner. 

our risk management unit is primarily 
responsible for coordinating the company’s 
cross-functional response to risks.

Risk management 
Philosophy

our risk management policies and 
procedures are strategically aimed at 
managing potential residual risk inherent in 
our operations.

our vision and mission statements 
provide the basis for our risk management 
philosophy and objectives, while the 
Board sets the tone of the company’s 
risk culture. This is guided by an approved 
enterprise-wide risk management 
methodology. The methodology also 
provides regulatory principles that, 
together with the risk management 
approach, ensure optimum return on the 
parent company’s investment through the 
application of the following core principles:

� Sound risk management as the 
foundation of a long-lasting financial 
institution;

� Governance of risk management by 
well-defined policies which are clearly 
communicated across the company;

� The company’s risk management 
governance structure shall be clearly 
defined;

� risk-related issues are taken into 
consideration in all business decisions;

� risks are reported openly and fully to 
the appropriate levels once they are 
identified;

� risk management is a shared 
responsibility; and

� Integration of risk management 
activities within the company and 
across its value chain.
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ACCoUNtABILItY 

Risk 
management 

oversight

We have created a structured approach 
across all functions of the organisation 
to identify, mitigate and report these 
risks. Our enterprise risk management 
framework ensures that management 
takes the steps necessary to identify, 
measure, monitor and control these risks. 

We operate a ‘three lines of defence’ 
approach for the management and 
oversight of risk, which is detailed in our 
Risk Management section (pg 55). 
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INtERNAL CoNtRoL

our internal controls include rules, policies and processes to ensure that the Company operates ethically and in 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, that our assets are safeguarded, and financial reporting is 
correct. these controls are embedded throughout our operations.

Approach

FPCNL’s approach to internal control 
follows the standard COSO 2013 
framework, which recognises our 
three lines of defence approach. 

Internal Control Framework

The framework describes the 
structure and methodology through 
which we effectively and efficiently 
develop our internal control systems 

to mitigate risks to acceptable levels. 
It supports sound decision making 
and governance and delivers strong 
performance. The framework has five 
components:

Control 
Environment

1
A sound control environment in FPCNL 
is created by Board and Management 
through communication, attitude and 
example. This includes a focus on integrity, 
commitment to investigate discrepancies, 
diligence in designing systems and 

assigning responsibilities. This is reinforced 
through governance and oversight roles, 
the Company’s ethical values and our 
organisational structure through which 
authority and responsibility is assigned. 

The Company embraces a robust risk 
management process entailing identification, 
measurement and management of risks so 
that risk levels are within defined tolerance 

levels. This forms the basis for determining 
how risks in the Company are managed and 
controlled.

Risk 
Assessment 
Process

2

Control 
Activities   

3
Control activities are established through 
policies and procedures to ensure that 
Management’s directives to mitigate risks 
to the achievement of objectives are 

implemented. Control activities include 
authorisations and approvals verifications, 
reconciliations, business performance reviews 
and segregation of duties.
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Information 
Communication 
and technology 
(ICt)

4
The business generates, or obtains, and uses 
relevant information from both internal and 
external sources to support the functioning 
of internal control systems. Communication 
is the iterative and continual process of 
sourcing and providing necessary information 

to support decision-making. The availability 
of information and a clear and evident 
plan for communicating responsibilities and 
expectations is paramount to a good internal 
control system.

Control 
Procedures and 
monitoring

5
FPCNL’s internal control system is periodically 
reviewed to ensure control remains effective 
and fit for purpose. Evaluation procedures, 
including any necessary corrective action, 

are built into business processes and results 
regularly communicated to Management and 
the Board. 

Internal Control strategy, Plan and 
Policies

The Company has an internal control 
plan and programme approved by 
the Board and implemented by a 
dedicated team. Other means used 
to manage risk include the transfer 
of risk to third parties, risk sharing, 
contingency planning and withdrawal 
from unacceptably risky activities.

FPCNL operates in an environment 
that is continuously exposed to 
uncertainties and changes. Such 
risks may prevent the organisation 
from achieving its strategic business 
objectives.

To effectively manage these risks, 
FPCNL has put in place internal 
control measures that cover all 
business units. These measures 
include:

� Verification and authentication of 
all clients’ instructions by 

 call-back confirmation and 
signature verification based on 
previously received mandates;

� Maker/checker control on all 
transactions captured on the 
applications;

� Independent reviews of all 
processed instructions by control 
and audit staff;

� Control of access to data and 
restricted areas; and

� Effective back up and disaster 
recovery process.

Account activity is sent to clients 
daily to aid regular monitoring of 
inflow and outflow into clients’ 
accounts.

Notable events during 2019

� The Company joined the rest of 
the world in marking the annual 
compliance and ethics week 
between November 4th and 8th 
2019.

� Workshops on ‘Risk Identification 
and Review of Risk Register’ 
were held for selected staff. 

� Compliance and Risk 
Management trainings were held 
twice for all. 

� The number of operational errors 
was reduced by 35% through 
sound internal control framework 
and risk culture.

� Data Privacy and Protection 
training was conducted to keep 
staff abreast of the dictates 
of the Nigeria Data Protection 
Regulation 2019.
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Priorities for 2020

Ensuring that the 
Company’s resources 
are utilised only for their 
intended purposes and 
minimising the risk of 
resource misuse.

Prevention of financial 
irregularities by prompt 
detection and resolution.

Deployment of more 
technology for control and 
reconciliation functions.

Regular communication of 
updates and reminders of 
policies and procedures to 
staff.

Continuous assessment 
of risks and the level of 
internal control required 
to protect FPCNL’s assets 
and records related to 
those risks. 

Greater focus on 
environmentally friendly 
operations.

Monitoring alignment 
of achievements with 
strategies.

Improving corporate 
governance.

Allowing relevant parties 
to increase reliance on 
FPCNL internal control.

Prevention and detection 
of fraud.
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WHIstLEBLoWING PRoCEDUREs

Whistleblowing is a mechanism by which suspected breaches of the Company’s internal policies, processes, procedures 
and unethical activities by all stakeholders (staff, clients, service providers, suppliers and pensioners) are escalated for 
necessary action. the reputation of the Company is of utmost importance; all staff have a responsibility to protect the 
Company from any persons or acts that might jeopardise it.

Whistleblowing Procedures

during their reporting to aid 
thorough and quick investigation 
and to guide further action. The 
whistleblower should also make 
certain that their disclosures are 
made within the scope of the 
Company’s whistleblowing policy. 

Our whistleblowing platform is 
accessible to all, including the 
following measures:

� FPCNL ensures adherence to 
the Whistleblowing Guideline for 
Pensions issued by the National 
Pension Commission (PenCom), 
and other ethical codes 
established by the Company 
in line with its commitment to 
good corporate governance and 
transparency. The guidelines 
are circulated to all staff and 
everyone is encouraged to follow 
them;

� Internal Control, Audit and 
Compliance perform independent 
checks on all areas and report 
any breaches discovered to 
management and to the Board 
(during the quarterly Board 
meetings);

� Any regulatory breaches 
discovered are reported in the 
monthly exception report to 
PenCom;

� Staff members are encouraged 
to report observed breaches to 
the Chief Compliance Officer;

� Issues can also be reported 
under anonymity; and

� The Chief Compliance Officer is 
responsible for monitoring and 
reporting on whistleblowing.

Internal Whistleblowing 

� Calling extension 7849 or 
7807

� Emailing the Managing 
Director: kunle.jinadu@
firstpensioncustodian.com

� Emailing the Chief Compliance 
Officer: tunde.folayan@
firstpensioncustodian.com

� Using the whistleblowing portal 
at www.firstpensioncustodian.
com

� Emailing the National Pension 
Commission at complaints@
pencom.gov.ng

There are various channels for 
reporting unlawful conduct 
at work and reassurance that 
escalating wrong-doings will not 
expose the whistleblower unduly. 
Whistleblowers are constantly 
encouraged to make use of simple, 
clear and concise statements 

An internal whistleblower may raise 
concerns either by declaration 
or anonymously via any of the 
following: 

� Formal letter to the Managing 
Director/Chief Executive 
Officer (MD/CEO), First 
Pension Custodian Nigeria 
Ltd or the Chief Compliance 
Officer/Head Compliance and 
Risk 

� Calling or texting the 
dedicated phone number, 
08023407776 
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WhistlebloWing PRoceduRes 

Reporting Format

All concerns raised should include 
background to the concerns (with 
relevant dates), reason(s) why 
the whistle-blower is particularly 
concerned about the situation 
and supporting evidence for the 
allegations, if available, would be 
helpful in the investigation. For full 
details on Whistleblowing, please 
read the Whistleblowing Policy on the 
Company’s website.

external Whistleblowing procedure 

� Call or text the 
dedicated phone number: 
08023407776  

� Emailing the Chief Compliance 
Officer: tunde.folayan@
firstpensioncustodian.com

� Emailing the Managing 
Director: kunle.jinadu@
firstpensioncustodian.com

� Emailing the Chairman: Umar.
Yahaya@firstpensioncustodian.
com

External whistleblowers are clients, 
suppliers, service providers and 
other members of the public who 
report employee wrong-doings 
to the Chief Compliance Officer 
or the Managing Director/Chief 
Executive Officer. 
An external whistleblower may 
raise concerns either by declaration 
or anonymously through any of the 
following: 

� Formal letter to the Managing 
Director/Chief Executive 
Officer (MD/CEO), First 
Pension Custodian Nigeria 
Ltd or the Chief Compliance 
Officer 

� Using the whistleblowing portal 
at www.firstpensioncustodian.
com 

� Emailing the National Pension 
Commission at complaints@
pencom.gov.ng or writing 
to the Director General, 
National Pension Commission 
(PENCOM), Plot 174, 
Adetokunbo Ademola Crescent 
Wuse II, Abuja.

Changes to any of the channels 
detailed above would require 
immediate communication to all 
stakeholders through the approved 
channels, after which the policy 
would be amended accordingly. 

Where the concern is received 
by staff other than the MD/
CEO and the Chief Compliance 
Officer, the person to whom 
the concern is directed shall be 
required to immediately forward 
the concern(s) to the Chief 
Compliance Officer with a copy 
to the Managing Director/Chief 
Executive Officer, First Pension 
Custodian Nigeria Ltd.

If the concern affects the Chief 
Compliance Officer, the Managing 
Director must be notified, and 
where such issues affect the 
Managing Director or a particular 
Director, such concern shall be 
referred to the Chairman, Board of 
Directors. 

If the concern affects the full 
Board of Directors and/or the 
Chairman, such concern shall be 
reported to the National Pension 
Commission (PenCom).
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WhistlebloWing PRoceduRes 

timeline for investigation 

First Pension Custodian Nigeria 
Ltd is committed to achieving 
prompt resolution of all concerns 
or issues raised. In case of ongoing 
investigations, the Chief Compliance 
Officer has a duty to provide regular 
update to the Managing Director/
CEO.

disclosure

There is an effective whistleblowing 
framework in place to minimise 
the Company’s exposure and 
prevent recurrence. The Committee 
responsible for audit are notified 
of any reported case. However, no 
whistleblowing reports were received 
during 2019 through the channels 
provided.

Protection for Whistleblowers 

FPCNL has an obligation 
to adequately protect the 
whistleblower. Therefore, reprisal 
against any employee who in good 
faith reports a concern about 
illegal or unethical conduct will 
not be tolerated. The Company 
is committed to maintaining 
confidentiality and providing 
assurance that all reports will 
be subjected to appropriate 
investigation and conclusion 
through an efficient process.

Consequently, whistleblowers are 
encouraged to disclose their names 
when filing reports to enhance 
credibility. However, anonymous 
disclosures may be considered on 
the following discretionary basis:

i) The seriousness of the issues 

ii) The significance and credibility 
of the concerns 

iii) The possibility of confirming 
the allegations
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the Directors present their annual report on the affairs of First Pension Custodian Nigeria Ltd, together with the 
financial statements and auditors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

d. Directors’ Interests in Contracts 

For the purpose of Section 277 of 
the Companies and Allied Matters 
Act, CAP C20 LFN 2004, none of 
the Directors had direct or indirect 
interest in contracts or proposed 
contracts with the Company during 
the year.

e. Changes on the Board

In the course of the financial year 
ended 31 December 2019, Funso 
Sobande, an Executive Director, 
resigned from the Board with effect 
from 25 January 2019. In the same 
vein, the Board appointed Mercy 
DaSilva as a Non-Executive Director 
with effect from 19 September 2019.

f. Property, Plant and Equipment

Information relating to changes in 
property, plant and equipment, is 
given in Note 9 to the financial 
statements. In the Directors’ opinion, 
the market value of the Company’s 
properties is not less than the value 
shown in the financial statements.

g. Events After the Reporting 
Period

There are no events after the 
reporting period known to the 
Directors which are to be reported.

a. Legal Form and Principal Activity 

The Company was incorporated in 
Nigeria under the Companies and 
Allied Matters Act as a private 
limited liability company on 12 
August 2005. It was granted a 
licence on 7 December 2005 to 
carry on the business of a Pension 
Fund Custodian. 

The principal activity of the Company 
is to act as a custodian of pension 
fund assets in accordance with the 
Pension Reform Act 2014, or any 
amendment or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force.

b. operating Results

The profit for the year after taxation 
amounted to N4.31bn (31 December 
2018: N4.23bn).  

The Directors recommend for 
approval a dividend of N1.29 per 
ordinary share for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2019. 
Withholding tax will be deducted at 
the time of payment.

c. Directors and their Interests

The Directors do not have any direct 
or indirect interests in the issued 
share capital of the Company (2018: 
Nil) as recorded in the register of 
Directors’ shareholding or as notified 
by the Directors for the purposes 
of Sections 275 and 276 of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act.

h. Human Resources

� employment of Physically 
challenged Persons 

 The Company operates a 
 non-discriminatory policy in the 

consideration of applications 
for employment, including 
those received from physically 
challenged persons. 

 All employees, whether physically 
challenged or not, are given 
equal opportunities to develop. 
In the event of members of staff 
becoming disabled, efforts will 
be made to ensure that their 
employment with the Company 
continues and appropriate 
training is arranged to ensure 
that they fit into the Company’s 
working environment. 

� Health, Safety and Welfare at 
Work 

 Health and safety regulations 
are in force within the premises 
of the Company. The Company 
maintains business premises 
designed with a view to 
guaranteeing the safety and 
healthy working conditions of its 
employees and customers alike.

	 Employees are adequately 
insured against occupational 
and other hazards. In addition, 
the Company at its expense 
provides medical facilities to its 
employees and their immediate 
families.
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	 The Company operates both 
Group Personal Accident and 
the Workmen’s Compensation 
Insurance cover for the benefit 
of its employees. It also 
operates a contributory pension 
scheme in line with the Pension 
Reform Act 2014.

� employee Involvement and 
Development 

 The Company encourages the 
participation of employees in 
decision-making on matters 
affecting their well-being, 
through various forums 
including town hall meetings. 

	 In accordance with the 
Company’s policy of continuous 
development, employees 
attended various training 
courses, both locally and 
overseas in 2019. 

� Diversity in employment
 Diversity comes from a broad 

and representative mix of 
backgrounds and experience, 
with different perspectives 
allowing the development of 
new opportunities. The Company 
remains an equal opportunity 
employer.

i Auditors

Our auditors, Messrs Deloitte 
& Touche, have indicated their 
willingness to act and continue in 
office as auditors in accordance with 
Section 357(2) of the Companies 
and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 
LFN 2004. A resolution will be 
proposed at the Annual General 
Meeting to authorise the Directors to 
determine their remuneration.

BY oRDER oF tHE BoARD

Adeyoola Adebayo 
Company Secretary
FRC/2015/NBA/00000012468
Lagos, Nigeria.
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major Risks encountered by First Pension Custodian nigeria Limited

ChieF RisK OFFiCeR’s RePORt

Identifying and managing risks is 
key to our business. As this helps us 
deliver long-term shareholder value 
and protect our business, people, 
assets, capital and reputation. 

FPCNL has taken an active approach 
to risk management and has 
continued to build on a best-in-class 
capability, ensuring risks are 
appropriately rewarded where 
strategic, mitigated where appropriate, 
with clear understanding.

In 2019, the Company continued to 
grow its balance sheet in a profitable 
and prudent manner. Adherence to 
Board approved risk appetite remained 
strong throughout the period. 
The Company has further 
strengthened its core ratios in an 
uncertain economic, political and 
regulatory environment.

Risk Profile and mitigation

Coupled with a strong financial 
performance, the Company’s 
risk profile has been managed in 

accordance with the Board-approved 
risk appetite. The performance against 
key risk indicators remained strong 
throughout the year. We manage our 
risk profile according to our desired 
acceptance of risks. To do this, the 
Company maintains risk registers that 
include details of the risks identified 
and of the controls and the mitigating 
controls. Overall, FPCNL’s risk appetite 
did not change materially compared 
to the previous year. Our identified 
key risks are set out in the diagram 
below:

tunde Folayan
Chief Risk Officer

Coupled with a strong financial 
performance, the Company’s risk profile 
has been managed in accordance with 

the Board-approved risk appetite.

Regulatory and 
Compliance 

Risks

Operational Risks Reputational 
Risks

Liquidity Risks information 
security Risks

market/
investment 

Risks

Legal Risks
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principal Risk Mitigants 

Regulatory and 
Compliance 

Risks

The Company has an established compliance function which 
actively identifies, assesses and monitors adherence with 
current regulations and the impact of emerging regulations.

Operational 
Risks 

A strong culture of transparency and escalation has been 
cultivated across the organisation, with the operational 
risks function that ensures a risk management model 
that is embedded and consistently applied.

legal Risks

The Company manages these risks by monitoring new legislation, 
raising awareness of of legislation and policies among employees, 
among employees, entrenched sound corporate governance 
and identifying significant legal risks as well as assessing their 
potential impact and establishing adequate mitigating controls.

Market Risks 

The Company proactively manages its risk profile in respect 
of adverse movements in interest rates, foreign exchange 
rates and counterparty exposures.

information 
security 

Risks

FPCNL instituted a sound and robust information technology 
(IT) Risk Management framework. It gives confidence that 
information technology can deliver business value efficiently 
and securely, while providing high-quality assurance around data 
integrity, availability and confidentiality of its information assets. 

liquidity 
Risks

The Company actively manages its liquidity and funding 
profile within the confines of its risk appetite as set out in 
the Liquidity Risk Policy.

Reputational 
Risks 

The Company strives to maintain quality client service 
procedures and business operations that enable compliance
with regulatory rules and legislation  to minimise the risk of 
a decline in the reputation of the Company.
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Chief Risk OffiCeR’s RepORt

fOCUs in 2020

Looking forward, the risk function has 
identified the following priorities:

� Prepare for major risks associated 
with the implementation of 
the transfer window and other 
regulations and guidelines that 
may be released during the year;

� Continuous review of the risks 
associated with the Micro Pension 
Plan;

� Improve risk awareness within the 
organisation;

� Continuous review and update the 
Risk Register;

� Leverage technology to monitor 
compliance;

� Increase attention on training to 
equip staff with the skills required 
for effective performance;

� Enhance the mobility programme 
for staff rotation, and to motivate 
and avoid the risks associated with 
monotony of activities;

� Emphasise the use of technology 
as a competitive tool;

� Review the internal control 
 process, taking into consideration 

various improvement changes that 
have occurred in the business 
units;

� Review of, and continuous 
improvement to the risk 
management reporting format;

� Continue to provide subject 
expertise and collaborate with the 
risk owners to agree and support 
a consistent approach to risk 
register management across the 
organisation;

� Consider an approach to assessing 
organisational behaviours as a 
central element of understanding 
the overall risk culture; and

� Annual review of the risk 
management strategy. 

The Company remains committed to promoting a 
sound business environment, and will continue to 
create an enabling business environment through 
the development and implementation of a robust 

enterprise risk management framework and 
enhanced risk culture

Managing emerging Risks

Emerging risks are risks that do 
not currently exist but may occur 
in the future due to changes in the 
environment. Adequate controls will be 
put in place to mitigate risks that may 
arise as a result of industry initiatives 
implemented in the coming year. Such 
initiatives include:

� A transfer window that will 
enable contributors under the 
Contributory Pension Scheme 
to change their pension fund 
administrators.

� Development and utilisation of 
suitable products for investment 
of pension funds in infrastructure 
and real estate.

COnClUsiOn 

FPCNL will proactively assess and 
manage the risks associated with its 
business lines and areas of operations 
to meet its transformation objectives. 

Business initiatives will be subjected 
to risk considerations and only 

implemented when the associated 
risks are considered fair and 
acceptable within defined thresholds. 

The Company remains committed 
to promoting a sound business 
environment, and will continue 
to create an enabling business 
environment through the development 

and implementation of a robust 
enterprise risk management 
framework and enhanced risk culture.

Risk-related matters in FPCNL are 
championed by the Head, Compliance 
and Risk department, with the support 
of the Management, while the Board 
provides an oversight function.
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Risk MAnAgeMent

Internal Audit provides independent 
assurance as to the effectiveness 
and compliance with the Enterprise 
Risk Management Framework and the 
underlying risk management policies 
and procedures. 

The executive function has day-to-day 
responsibility for managing the risk 
profile of the Company within the 
defined risk appetite, with oversight 

and guidance provided by the Board 
and its Risk Committee.

Under First Pension Custodian Nigeria 
Limited’s risk management framework, 
staff are responsible for identifying, 
measuring, evaluating, monitoring, 
reporting and managing material risk, 
including cyber, legal, liquidity, market, 
operational, regulatory and compliance 
and reputation risks.

introduction

Deploying effective risk management 
is a key success factor for realising 
our strategic objectives, as it provides 
reasonable assurance to prevent 
material misstatements or losses. 
FPCNL risk management is structured 
along the three lines of defence 
framework and implemented in 
accordance with policies approved by 
the Board of Directors and in line with 
PenCom guidelines and best practice.

Within this framework, the Board 
is responsible for designing, 
implementing, and operating 
an adequately functioning risk 
management and control framework 
within the Company. Through the 
framework, risks are identified and 
managed, supporting the effectiveness 
and efficiency of the Company’s 
operations and in compliance with 
laws and regulations. 

Risk governance and Organisational 
structure

Effective risk governance encompasses 
individuals, company-wide functions 
and committees involved in the 
management of risks.

The Board acts directly or through 
its committees to discharge its risk 
oversight and control responsibilities. 
The Board and its committees are 
provided with appropriate and timely 
information relating to the nature and 
level of risks to which the Company is 
exposed and the adequacy of the risk 
controls and mitigants. 

FPCNL operates a ‘three lines of defence’ model as shown below:

MANAGeMeNT 
COMMiTTee

DePARTMeNTs

BUsiNess UNiTs 
Risk 

BOARD 
COMMiTTees

COMPLiANCe 
AND Risk

 Risk 
MANAGeMeNT

BOARD AUDiT 
Risk 

eXTeRNAL 
AUDiTOR

iNTeRNAL 
AUDiT

1st Line of 
Defence

3rd Line of 
Defence

2nd Line of 
Defence
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Risk MAnAgeMent

Effective risk management 
is vital. At FPCNL, we adopt 
a multi-layered approach 
to ensure identification, 
awareness and effective 
management of our 
business-related risks, 
including sustainability risks. 
This includes identifying 
business opportunities that 
may arise from changing 
conditions. 

At FPCNL, we recognise that 
businesses today need to 
fully integrate sustainability 
and risk management into 
their strategy, not only to 
minimise potential losses but 
also to exploit new business 
opportunities arising from the 
sustainability agenda. These 
may include new services to 
meet developing sustainability 
needs, new technologies to 
improve sustainability or risk 
performance, or new business 
models to access and develop 
emerging markets and support 
the creation of sustainable 
communities.

The Company’s risk framework 
has been developed to monitor 
and manage the risks of the 
business across all levels 
and is owned by the Board. 
The Company’s exposure to 
market, reputational, legal, 
liquidity and operational risks 
is monitored and managed by 
our risk function, taking into 
consideration of economic, 
regulatory and ratings 
perspectives.

Risk Appetite

Risk appetite is the maximum level of 
residual risk that the Company is prepared 
to accept, and it is a core consideration in 
an enterprise risk management approach. 

This is primarily characterised by a clear 
risk strategy, and monitoring and reporting 
procedures that help identify potential 
deviations from risk tolerances in a 
timely manner. The appropriate level of 
acceptable risk is contained in FPCNL’s 
approved enterprise risk management 
framework. 

FPCNL’s risk appetite is set annually by 
the Board, and it is aimed at minimising 
erosion of earnings or capital due to 
avoidable losses, and to drive business 
initiatives without loss of value or 
unmitigated exposures to related risks.

The Company’s risk appetite is governed by:

� Efficient operations, sound internal 
control and respect for law and 
regulations;

� Avoidance of loses due to frauds and 
operational lapses;

� Minimising exception reported by 
auditors, regulators and external 
rating agencies;

� Averting adverse publicity in local and 
international press;

� Avoidance of litigation;

� Avoidance of regulatory penalties and 
fines; and

� Not compromising its reputation 
through unethical, illegal and 
unprofessional conduct.

Risk principle and Culture

A sound risk culture entrenched in 
FPCNL’s risk management framework 
since inception. It is continuously being 
maintained and improved. Primary 
responsibility for risk management in 
FPCNL, including risk culture, is at the 
business in FPCNL’s level. 

The key elements that define an 
effective risk culture at FPCNL include: 

� Level of engagement from 
Senior Management in the risk 
management process; 

� Clear understanding of the key 
risks that the business is exposed 
to; 

� Understanding the level of risk 
that the organisation is prepared 
to accept; and 

� The integration of risk into the 
decision-making process.

The Board has established overarching 
risk-based principles. The risk principles 
provide for a clearly articulated risk 
vision and strategy and ensure that 
the Company’s risk capabilities and 
processes are aligned. 

The risk principles are: 

� Customer interests: Customer 
outcomes and conduct risk are 
central to all aspects of FPCNL’s 
business and control functions. 

� Proportionate and Commensurate: 
The ERM Framework reflects the 
complexity of the Company’s 
business model and is scalable to 
accommodate future growth. 
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� Defined Risk Appetite: Risks 
are assumed subject to defined 
qualitative statements and 
quantitative limits and thresholds. 

� Coverage: All principal risks are 
identified, assessed and managed 
based on robust systems and 
controls. 

� Risk Governance: Risk-taking 
and oversight responsibility is 
appropriately segregated, in 
adherence to the ‘three lines of 
defence’ principle. 

� integration and Usage: Risk 
management disciplines are fully 
integrated into the Board and 
Senior Management 

 decision-making processes. 

� versatile: Risk framework and 
underlying capabilities are 
subject to ongoing review and 
are adaptive to the changing 
operating environment and the 
Company’s business model. 

The Company’s corporate vision of 
being a leading pension custodian 
within its chosen markets helps to 
shape its risk culture. 

The Board and Senior Management 
have cultivated a risk culture which 
encourages a proactive, transparent 
and informed approach to risk 
management in a balanced and 
considered manner, considering 
stakeholder expectations and good 
customer outcomes.
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eMeRging Risks

emerging risks are those with largely unknown components, the impact of which could crystallise over time. These 
could be considered immaterial at present but in the longer term could individually or cumulatively affect FPCNL’s 
strategy and cause the same outcomes as material risks.

The risks described below are emerging risks which Senior Management has identified with respect to 
First Pension Custodian Nigeria Ltd.

emerging Risks  

Regulatory and 
Compliance Risks

Regulatory compliance is designed 
to promote compliance with 
regulatory guidelines.

Considering the growing scale and
complexity of the regulatory 
changes, it is acknowledged that 
there may be isolated instances 
where the Company’s response to 
new regulatory requirements may 
be subject to interpretation.

The Company has an established 
compliance function which actively 
identifies, assesses and monitors 
adherence with current regulation and 
the impact of emerging regulation.

To minimise regulatory risk, FPCNL 
maintains a proactive relationship 
with key regulators, engages with 
industry bodies such as the Pension 
Fund Operators Association of Nigeria 
and seeks external advice from our 
professional advisers.

In 2019, the Company responded 
effectively to a broad range of 
regulatory changes impacting its 
primary products.

The Compliance function organises 
compliance awareness training and 
periodically circulates PenCom 
regulations and circulars as well as 
Board approved internal policies.

Operational Risks

The risk resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, 
system failures, human 
performance failures (People Risk) 
or from external events.

The Company’s operational 
processes, systems and controls 
are designed to minimise 
disruption to customers, damage 
to the Company’s reputation 
and any detrimental impact on 
financial performance.

The Company actively promotes the 
evolution of its operating environment 
through the identification, evaluation 
and mitigation of risks, whilst 
recognising that the complete 
elimination of operational risks are not 
possible. Appropriate steps are also 
taken to control major operational 
risks before they adversely affect 
operations and the business. The 
steps include:

� Zero tolerance for regulatory 
infractions and penalties

� The highest ethical standards 

� Zero tolerance for fraud

� Appropriate policies and 
processes 

� Appropriate risk assessment 
and controls in exploiting new 
business opportunities

� Low tolerance for system 
downtimes and business 
disruptions
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eMeRging Risks

Reputational Risks

The risk that a Company’s 
reputation may be damaged by 
one or more reputational events 
such as negative publicity regarding 
its business practices, conduct or 
financial condition. 

This arises when a reputational 
event has the potential to 
materially influence the public and 
stakeholders’ perceived trust and 
confidence in an institution. 

It exposes the Company to loss of 
customers, financial loss, regulatory 
sanctions and costly litigation. The 
risk affects the Company’s ability 
to establish new relationships or 
services and retention of existing 
relationships.

In 2019, the Company strived to 
maintain high-quality client service 
procedures as well as business 
operations that enable compliance 
with regulatory rules and legislation in 
order to minimise the risk of a decline 
in the Company’s reputation. 

FPCNL also promoted sound business 
ethics among its employees.

The Company did not compromise its 
reputation through unethical, illegal or 
unprofessional conduct. Management 
creates awareness among all 
members of staff on the need to 
be more diligent in the conduct of 
transactions, ensuring quality services 
to clients and apply best practice 
in dealing with various stakeholders. 

Also, FPCNL continued to maintain 
zero appetite for association with 
disreputable individuals and entities.

liquidity Risks

The Company has a prudent 
approach to liquidity management 
through maintaining sufficient 
liquid resources to cover cash 
flow imbalances and fluctuations 
in funding under both normal 
and stressed conditions arising 
from market-wide and Company 
specific events.

The Company’s liquidity risk appetite 
has been calibrated to ensure that 
the Company always operates with 
sufficient contingency for unexpected 
stresses whilst actively minimising 
the risk of holding excessive liquidity, 
which would adversely impact the 
financial efficiency of the business 
model. 

In 2019, the Company actively 
managed its liquidity and funding 
profile within the confines of its risk 
appetite as set out in the Liquidity 
Risk Policy.

The adequacy of the Company’s 
liquidity position is determined using 
the following factors:

� historical funding requirements;

� current liquidity position;

� present and future earnings 
capacity; and

� sources of funds.

FPCNL ensures that it maintains 
sufficient liquidity, including high liquid 
assets, to withstand a range of stress 
events and to settle its financial 
obligations. 

Most of the Company’s transactions 
are naira denominated, hence the 
fluctuations in foreign exchange 
currencies did not have a negative 
impact on the organisation. 

Furthermore, cash flow planning 
and other liquidity management 
techniques were employed to mitigate 
this risk. 
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eMeRging Risks

Market Risks 

This is the risk of loss in balance 
sheet positions, as a result of 
adverse movement in foreign 
exchange rate, interest rate, and 
counterparty exposures. 

While the Company may be faced 
with market risks, the finance 
function ensures these risks are 
managed and controlled in line 
with the investment policy, while 
optimising returns on risk.

The Company proactively manages 
its risk profile in respect of adverse 
movements in interest rates, foreign 
exchange rates and counterparty 
exposures. 

Interest rate exposure is mitigated on 
a continuous basis through portfolio 
diversification within limits set and 
approved by the Board. 

Exchange rates and counterparty 
exposure is managed by ensuring 
that most contracts are 
naira-denominated.

information security 
Risks

Information security risks include 
all actions that could negatively 
impact information assets, including 
unauthorised access, use, disclosure, 
modification, perusal, inspection, 
recording or destruction of 
information assets that could result 
in possible disruption or degradation 
of the Company’s operations.

The advancement of information
technology (IT) has brought about 
rapid changes to the way businesses 
and operations are conducted in the 
pension industry and other spheres 
of life. It is no longer a support 
function for pension fund companies 
but a key enabler for business 
strategies including reaching out to 
and meeting customer needs.

One area of information security 
risk is the use of information and 
communication technology systems 
and other infrastructure in the conduct 
of business. 

In the case of a disaster, either natural 
or man-made, which may render 
existing buildings and/or infrastructures 
inoperable, contingency plans are in 
place to mitigate such. 

To this end, the Company can run 

operations from a disaster recovery 
site located away from the vicinity 
of the main office. This alternative 
location is regularly tested and provides 
online replication of the main office’s 
transactions.

In addition to measures mentioned 
above, data is backed up on tape and 
stored in an approved location away 
from the main office. These tapes are 
tested at intervals to confirm that 
backed-up data is retrievable.
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legal Risks

Legal risks stem from the 
contractual agreements. It is the 
risk of real or threatened litigation 
against the Company. 

Legal risks can cause significant 
costs to the Company, disrupt its 
operation and reduce earnings and 
capital. 

The risk has enormous cost 
implications to the organisation 
and affects its reputation.

The Company manages this risk by 
monitoring new legislation, raising 
awareness of legislation among 
employees, entrenching sound corporate 
governance and identifying significant 
legal risks as well as assessing their 
potential impact and establishing 
adequate mitigating controls.

In 2019, legal risk management was 
carried out through proper management 
of various sources from which this 
risk could occur. Some of the controls 
adopted include:

� Service Level Agreements (SLAs) 
were executed between clients and 
various service providers.

� The SLAs were monitored to 
ensure compliance

� Continuous review and monitoring 
of contingent liabilities report and 

� Continuous contract review

The level of awareness of the need 
to identify, mitigate and manage legal 
risks in our business activities and 
transactions continues to improve. 

Legal risks has been well managed and 
there has been no incident of litigation 
directly involving the Company.

eMeRging Risks
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pRinCipAl Risks

FPCNL risk management framework considers the following categories of risks:

Risk 

Operational Risks: This is a risk of loss (direct 
or indirect) resulting from inadequate or failed 
internal processes, personnel (human factors) 
and systems or from external events. 

It is a risk linked with the Company’s quality 
of personnel, work ethics, processes and 
systems. Example of operational risk is a 
breakdown of IT systems leading to loss of 
manhours, embezzlement, frauds, inadequate 
reconciliation of accounts, inappropriate 
follow-up on stock positions or corporate 
action entitlements, misappropriation of assets, 
wrong and delayed treatment of client’s 
instructions.

The impact of operational risk on FPCNL is 
significant if allowed to crystallise. Apart from 
resulting in financial loss, it could also have 
great negative effect on the shareholders’ fund 
and eventual loss to shareholders as well as 
reputational damage.
 
FPCNL operates a three-lines-of-defence 
model to manage its operational risks, 
with each line of defence defining roles, 
responsibilities as well as escalation paths to 
support effective two-way communication and 
effective management of our operational risks. 

In addition, we have ongoing review 
mechanisms to ensure our operational risk 
framework continues to meet organisational 
needs and regulatory requirements. 

The objective of operational risk management 
is not to eliminate operational risks altogether 
but to manage it within appetite, considering 
the cost of mitigation and the level of 
reduction in the operational risk exposure that 
can be achieved in a cost-effective manner.

Risk Management and Mitigation

FPCNL continues to assume 
a proactive approach to the 
management of operational 
risks. 

The Risk Management 
Framework has been designed 
to ensure a robust approach to 
the identification, measurement 
and mitigation of operational 
risks, utilising a combination 
of both qualitative and 
quantitative techniques to 
promote an environment of 
progressive operational risk 
management.

A strong culture of 
transparency and escalation 
has been cultivated throughout 
the organisation, with the 
operational risk function that 
ensures a risk management 
model that is embedded and 
consistently applied. 

In addition, a community of 
Risk Champions representing 
each business line and 
functional area has been 
identified. 

Operational Risk Champions 
ensure that operational risk 
identification and assessment 
processes are established 
across the Company in a 
consistent manner. 

In line with best practice, 
several measures employed in 
managing these risks are; 

� Documented procedures 
and process flow for all 
business units; 

� Maker-checker control 
process in place; 

� Defined risk assessment 
procedures;

� Robust staff training; 

� Issuance of appropriate 
and deterrent circulars; 

� Job rotation and 
segregation of duties; 

� Continuous improvement 
of Company policy and 
processes;

� Implementation of a 
whistleblowing policy to 
encourage staff to report 
unethical activities to the 
Chief Compliance Officer/
Head, Compliance and 
Risk, Board and PenCom 
where necessary; and

� Risk transfer (insurance 
arrangement).
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Risk 

Regulatory and Compliance Risks: These 
are risks to the Company arising from 
non-adherence to rules and regulations as 
stipulated in the guidelines issued by PenCom 
and other regulatory bodies. 

The risks include release of pension funds 
for prohibited/unapproved investment, late 
submission of regulatory returns, payment 
without PenCom approval, failure to deduct 
and remit tax and other regulatory non-
compliant issues.
 
Crystallisation of regulatory and compliance 
risks may result in regulatory sanctions, 
financial or reputational loss and in extreme 
cases, withdrawal of licence and outright 
closure of the business.

The Company is committed to the highest 
standards of regulatory conduct and aims 
to minimise breaches, financial costs and 
reputational damage associated with 
non-compliance. 

The Compliance unit, under the leadership of 
the Head, Compliance and Risk, is 
is positioned to guide against the risk of failure 
to comply with applicable laws and regulations, 
regulatory policies, codes, internal policies, 
procedures and ethical standards which may 
result in regulatory sanctions and financial or 
reputational loss and ensures that statutory 
and regulatory requirements are adhered to 
and that breaches are promptly reported.

Risk Management and Mitigation

To ensure sustainable 
services to our clients and 
all stakeholders as well as 
mitigating the possible impact 
of regulatory and compliance 
risks, FPCNL has put the 
following measures in place:

� Whistleblowing guidelines

� Code of Corporate 
governance and ethics 
issued by PenCom

� Know your customer 
guidelines

� Independent compliance 
checks of all transactions 
compliance and risk 
training

 
� Adequate monitoring of 

all rules affecting the 
business 

A copy of the staff handbook 
is signed by all staff, and are 
encouraged and empowered to 
report any violation of rules
and regulations without fear of
victimisation.

Risk mitigants include the 
early identification, appropriate 
assessment and measurement 
and reporting of risks. 

The primary risk mitigants for 
regulatory risk are the existence 
of appropriate controls in place 
throughout the business and 
the effective planning for, and 
execution of, regulatory change.
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Risk 

liquidity Risks: Liquidity risk is the possibility 
of the Company not being able to meet its 
financial obligations as and when due. A 
company faces liquidity risk if it does not have 
enough cash or liquid assets to meet its 
short-term obligations. 

The principal uncertainty for liquidity risks is 
that financial obligations are not settled as they 
fall due or are met at excessive costs, which 
may result in insolvency and eventual damage 
to the Company’s reputation.

Liquidity risks arises from differences in timing 
between cash inflows and outflows. Liquidity 
risks can increase due to the unexpected 
lengthening of maturities or non-repayment of 
assets. 

Funding risks is the risk that the Company 
does not have sufficiently stable and diverse 
sources of funding or has an inefficient funding 
structure.

The Company adopts the below strategies in 
managing its liquidity risks:

� Effective cash flow planning; 

� Strive to achieve balance between 
maximising profit and maintaining liquidity;

� Diversified funding sources;

� Avoid and minimise concentration on 
volatile sources; and

� Efficient asset and liability management.

The Company’s liquidity management process is 
managed by the Chief Financial Officer under 
the direct supervision of the Managing Director 
and in conjunction with the Management 
Committee. The Board Finance and General 
Purpose Committee and the Board of Directors 
have oversight responsibility in this regard.

Risk Management and Mitigation

FPCNL manages its liquidity 
prudently by ensuring a diverse 
funding base. The Company’s 
funding plans include a 
portfolio of liquid assets, 
effective cash flow planning, 
marketable securities that can 
be realised if liquidity stress 
occurs and efficient asset and 
liability management.

Several measures are used by 
FPCNL to monitor and manage 
liquidity and funding risks 
including ratios, deposit outflow 
triggers, liquidity triggers, 
stress scenarios and early 
warning signals. Liquidity risk is 
measured using stress testing 
and scenario analysis. 

FPCNL has a contingency 
funding plan which incorporates 
early warning indicators to 
monitor market conditions. 

The Company monitors its 
liquidity position and funding 
strategies on an ongoing basis 
but recognises that unexpected 
events, economic or market 
conditions, earnings problems 
or situations beyond its control 
could cause either a short or 
long-term liquidity crisis. 

FPCNL reviews its contingency 
funding plan in light of evolving 
market conditions and stress 
test results.

The Company has adopted both 
qualitative and quantitative 
approaches to measuring 
liquidity risk. Specifically, 
FPCNL adopted the following 
approaches; 

� Funding and liquidity plan; 

� Gap analysis; and 

� Ratio analysis.
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Risk 

legal Risks: Legal risks is the risk of loss to an 
institution due to real or threatened litigation, 
which is primarily caused by a defective 
transaction. 

The risk can cause significant costs to 
the Company, disrupt the operation of the 
Company and reduce the earnings and capital 
of the Company.

The legal risk policy framework provides 
guidelines for the Management to strengthen 
legal risk controls to enhance overall risk 
management in the Company.

The main objectives of the Company’s legal 
risk management policy are to:

� Establish a process that allows the Board 
and Senior Management to be informed of 
pending litigation or existing litigation;

� Provide a consistent framework to assess 
the potential loss that may result from 
pending or existing litigations;

� Establish a procedure for reviewing new 
relationships and services for the risk of 
litigation;

� Determine the capital required to 
cover potential negative judgements or 
settlements; and

� Ensure that all contracts entered into by 
the Company are enforceable and that the 
Company is not exposed in any way.

The legal service of FPCNL is being supervised 
by FirstBank legal department under shared 
service arrangement.

Risk Management and Mitigation

The Company is aware of the 
potential loss that can arise 
where a financial institution 
faces a negative court 
judgement or where a contract 
does not provide the required 
legal protection or where it 
incurs liability for damages to 
third parties. 

FPCNL has established a shared 
service arrangement with 
FirstBank legal department, 
which focuses on managing 
and mitigating legal risks.

The legal risk function as part 
of the legal risk management 
process: 

� Ensures that service 
agreements are executed 
between the Company and 
its services providers; 

� Review and monitor legal 
claims made against the 
Company; and

� Obtain independent legal 
opinions on all litigation 
instituted against FPCNL.

FPCNL mitigates legal risks 
by strict adherence to sound 
business practices, avoidance 
of litigation against the 
Company and strict adherence 
to the service level agreements 
(SLAs) between the Company 
and other parties.

The Internal Audit is 
responsible for reviewing 
controls and data with respect 
to the Company’s custodial 
and service level agreements 
and respond to changes in the 
pension environment. 

In the event that real or 
threatened litigation is 
identified, the legal services 
shall assess and manage the 
risks associated with litigation 
and other legal matters.
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Risk 

information security Risks: Information security 
risks is a business risk concerning confidentiality, 
integrity or availability of an information system. 
It is a risk associated with the dissemination 
and flow of information within an organisation 
using information assets. This risk can expose 
the Company to financial loss, customer 
dissatisfaction and regulatory breaches and 
could also compromise confidentiality, integrity 
or availability of information.

FPCNL instituted a sound and robust IT 
Risk Management framework that provides 
confidence that IT can deliver business 
value efficiently and securely, while providing 
high-quality assurance around data integrity, 
availability and confidentiality of its information 
assets. 

Information security control is being built into 
all processes and procedures.

From a strategic perspective, information risk 
management is treated as a particular discipline 
within the operational risk framework. In 
essence, information risk management not only 
protects the Company’s information resources 
from a wide range of threats, but also enhances 
business operations, ensures business continuity, 
maximises return on investments and supports 
the implementation of various services. The 
approach to the management of information 
risk in FPCNL is in accordance with global best 
practice, applicable laws and regulations. 

The Company has embarked on an 
enterprise-wide comprehensive awareness and 
education campaign to ensure that the culture 
of information protection is entrenched, and 
the risks associated with improper handling of 
information are mitigated.

Information security control is being built into 
all processes and procedures through the 
development of appropriate safeguards.

Risk Management and Mitigation

FPCNL manages this type of 
risk through compliance with 
all relevant information security 
certification requirements, 
building appropriate information 
security control into all 
processes and procedures. 
Disaster recovery site is 
provided for either natural 
or man-made misadventure 
that may render existing 
buildings and/or infrastructures 
useless and regular awareness 
campaigns are used to drive 
information security and 
business continuity culture in 
the Company.

In the event of a disaster, 
either natural or man-made 
which may render existing 
buildings and/or infrastructures 
inoperable, contingency plans 
are in place to mitigate such. 

To this end, the Company can 
run operations from a disaster 
recovery site located away 
from the vicinity of the main 
office. This alternative location 
is regularly tested and provides 
online replication of the main 
office’s transactions.

In addition, data is backed 
up on tape and stored in an 
approved location away from 
the main office. These tapes 
are tested at intervals to 
confirm that backed-up data is 
retrievable.

The Company’s information 
security risk management 
framework ensures that 
information assets are always 
protected. This responsibility is 
shared by the Management and 
all staff through programmes 
targeted at increasing 
staff knowledge and client 
protection.
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Risk 

Market/investment Risks: Over the years, 
the Nigerian financial market has witnessed 
a dramatic expansion in the array of financial 
services and products. This tremendous growth 
in scale and scope has also generated new risks 
with global consequences, especially market risk, 
necessitating an assessment of exposures to the 
volatility of the underlying risk drivers.

Market risk arises from unexpected falls in the 
market value of Company assets possibly leading 
to a reduction in the desired solvency level and 
the need for additional capital. 

The risk could also be viewed as risk of loss, or 
adverse change in financial situation, resulting 
directly or indirectly from fluctuations arising 
from the volatility of market prices of assets, 
liabilities and financial instruments. 

The key risk exposures under market risks include 
interest risk, equity risk and foreign exchange risk.

The primary categories of market risks for the 
Company are:

� Interest rate risks is the exposure of the 
Company’s financial condition to adverse 
movements in interest rates, yield curves 
and credit spreads. FPCNL is exposed to 
interest rate risks through the 

 interest-bearing assets and liabilities in its 
financial books and pension fund books.

� Foreign exchange risks arise as a result of 
changes in the fair value or future cash 
flows of financial exposures due to changes 
in foreign exchange rates 

� Equity risks arise from equity price changes 
in listed and unlisted investments.

The Company traded in the following financial 
instruments in the course of the period:

� Treasury bills 

� Bonds 

� Money market instruments

Risk Management and Mitigation

FPCNL’s capital and earnings 
are exposed to risk due to 
changes in market prices, as 
a result, a robust market risk 
management framework is in 
place to reduce exposure to 
changes in interest rate, foreign 
exchange and equity prices. 

The objective is not to 
completely avoid these risks 
but to ensure exposure to 
these risks through our 
financials and pension funds’ 
book positions are kept within 
the Company’s defined risk 
appetite and tolerance.

The Company has a 
well-defined investment policy 
which guides how company 
fund is invested in diversified 
government portfolio and high 
rated counterparties.

FPCNL recognises that the 
effective management of 
market/investment risks is 
essential to the maintenance 
of stable earnings, the 
preservation of capital 
resources and the achievement 
of the Company’s strategic 
objectives.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES 
FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Pension Reform Act require the directors to prepare financial statements for each 
financial year that gives a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the Company at the end of the year and of its profit or 
loss. The responsibilities include ensuring that the Company:

i. Keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company and comply with 
the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act;

ii. Establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities; and

iii. Prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates 
that are consistently applied.

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies 
supported by reasonable judgments and estimates, in conformity with:

�	 International Financial Reporting Standards;

�	 The requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act;

�	 The requirements of the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act; and

�	 Relevant circulars issued by the National Pension Commission.

The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the 
Company and of the financial performance and cash flows for the year. The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance 
of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal 
financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at least 12 
months from the date of this statement.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD BY:

Umar Yahaya      Kunle Jinadu
Chairman       Managing Director/CEO  
FRC/2013/IODN/00000003223    FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002122
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REPORT OF THE BOARD AUDIT, RISK AND 
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 359 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and Pension Reform Act 2014, we have 
reviewed the Audit Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 and hereby state as follows:

� The scope and planning of the audit were adequate in our opinion.

� The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with statutory requirements and agreed ethical practices.

� The internal control was being constantly and effectively monitored.

� The external auditors’ management report received satisfactory response from management.

Dr Bayo Odeniyi
Chairman, Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
FRC/2015/VCN/00000011082
11 February 2020

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE
Dr Bayo Odeniyi - Chairman
Ijeoma Nwogwugwu
Philip Olufunwa
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FIRST PENSION 
CUSTODIAN NIGERIA LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements 
of First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited 
which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2019, the 
statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity, statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying 
financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of First 
Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited as at 
31 December 2019, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), the Companies and Allied Matters 
Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, Pension Reform 
Act and the Financial Reporting Council of 
Nigeria Act 2011.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of First Pension 
Custodian Nigeria Limited in accordance 
with the requirements of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria 
professional code of conduct and guide 
for Accountants (ICAN code) and other 
ethical requirements in the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
(IESBA) Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants adopted in Nigeria, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the 
other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report and 
Audit Committee’s Reports as required by 
Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP 
C20 LFN 2004, which we obtained prior 
to the date of this auditor’s report. The 
other information does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements 
do not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the 
financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on 
the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and 
those charged with governance 
for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in accordance 
with IFRSs and the requirements of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP 

C20 LFN 2004, Pension Reform Act, 
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act 
2011, and for such internal control as 
directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, 
Directors are responsible for assessing 
the entity’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless 
directors either intend to liquidate the 
company or to cease operations, or have 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are 
responsible for overseeing the entity’s 
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the entity’s financial 
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 
ISAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

�	 Identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

�	 Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.

�	 Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by Directors.

�	 Conclude on the appropriateness 
of the directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the 
company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FIRST PENSION CUSTODIAN NIGERIA LIMITED

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

�	 Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged 
with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements

In accordance with the Sixth Schedule of 
Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP 
C20 LFN 2004, we expressly state that:

i) We have obtained all the information 
and explanation which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our 
audit.

ii) The Company has kept proper books 
of account, so far as appears from 
our examination of those books.

iii) The Company’s statements 
of financial position and its 
statements of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income are in 
agreement with the books of account.

iv) No evidence of non-compliance with 
laws and regulations (NOCLAR) was 
brought to our notice during the year.

For: Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria
27 February 2020    
 

Engagement Partner: Joshua Ojo, FCA
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000845
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Custody fees 4  5,973,447  6,409,599 

Interest income 5  1,558,828  1,720,378 

Other income 6  7,720  4,094 

Total income  7,539,995  8,134,071 

Personnel expenses 7.1  507,855  470,912 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  9  148,401  141,760 

Amortisation of intangible assets.  10  9,897  3,450 

Impairment loss allowance (ECL)  8  48,407  4,793 

Other operating expenses 7  1,691,418  1,722,421 

Total operating expenses  2,405,978  2,343,336 

Profit before tax  5,134,017  5,790,735 

Income tax expense 19  (822,316)  (1,560,215)

Profit for the year  4,311,701  4,230,520 

Basic earnings per share (kobo) 27  216  212 
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Note

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Profit for the year 4,311,701 4,230,520

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gains/(losses) on post employment obligations  -    -   

Deferred tax relating to components of other comprehensive income  -    -   

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -    -   

Total comprehensive income for the year  4,311,701  4,230,520 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9  3,760,408  1,534,959 
Intangible assets 10  41,457  4,434 
Right of use asset 11.2  135,815  -   
Deferred tax assets 11  132,270  150,171 

 4,069,950  1,689,564 

Current assets
Loans and other receivables 12  856,936  714,890 
Other assets 13  59,476  117,667 
Investment securities 14  7,513,516  10,547,474 
Cash and short term funds 15a  3,809,490  1,827,967 

 12,239,418  13,207,998 
Total assets  16,309,368  14,897,562 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 16  2,000,000  2,000,000 
Retained earnings  10,950,126  9,176,737 
Total equity  12,950,126  11,176,737 
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations 17  3,968 -

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals 18  1,396,911  1,204,809 
Income tax liabilities 19 1,958,363 2,516,016

 3,355,274  3,720,825 
Total liabilities  3,359,242  3,720,825 
Total equity and liabilities  16,309,368  14,897,562 
Pension assets under custody 20.1 3,287,050,565 2,760,627,093
Non-pension assets under custody 20.2  -    12,865,621 

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 February 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Umar Yahaya    Kunle Jinadu    Bunmi Aderonmu
Chairman    Managing Director/CEO   Chief Financial Officer 
FRC/2013/IODN/00000003223  FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002122  FRC/2013/ICAN/00000001939
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Share 
capital

N’000

Retained 
earnings
N'000

Total
equity
N'000

Balance at 1 January 2019  2,000,000  9,176,737  11,176,737 

Profit for the year  -    4,311,701  4,311,701 

Total comprehensive income or loss  2,000,000  13,488,438  15,488,438 

Dividend paid  -    (2,538,312)  (2,538,312)

Total transactions with owners of the company at 31 December 2019  2,000,000  10,950,126  12,950,126 

Balance at 1 January 2018  2,000,000  8,457,548  10,457,548 

Impact of initial application of IFRS 9  (21,512)  (21,512)

Restated balance at 1 January 2018  2,000,000  8,436,036  10,436,036 

Profit for the year  4,230,520  4,230,520 

Total comprehensive income  2,000,000  12,666,556  14,666,556 

Dividend paid  (3,489,819)  (3,489,819)

Total transactions with owners of the company at 31 December 2018  2,000,000  9,176,737  11,176,737 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Profit for the year 4,311,701 4,230,520

Income tax charge 19  822,316 1,560,215

Profit before income tax 5,134,017 5,790,735

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Write-off 1,260 -

Depreciation of property and equipment 9 148,401 141,760

Amortisation of intangibles 10 9,897 3,450

ECL Impairment adjustment 8 48,407 4,793

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment  13,695 -28

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Right of use assets 11.2 (135,815)  -   

Other receivables (204,678) 45,420

Prepayments 58,191 38,417

Retirement benefit obligations 3,968 -

Creditors and accruals 192,102 119,825

Cash generated from operations  5,269,445  6,144,372 

Income taxes paid 19  (1,362,067)  (1,237,721)

Net cashflow (used in)/generated from operating activities  3,907,378  4,906,651 

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 9  (2,471,495)  (405,085)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  45,387  723 

Acquisition of Intangibles 10  (9,618)  (1,155)

Sale/purchase of investment securities 3,045,880  (658,648)

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities  610,154  (1,064,165)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid  (2,538,312)  (3,489,819)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities  (2,538,312)  (3,489,819)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  1,979,220  352,667 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents  1,979,220  352,667 

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year  1,830,270  1,477,603 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15a  3,809,490  1,830,270 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1 General information

First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited  
was incorporated in Nigeria as a limited 
liability company on 12 August 2005. It 
was granted its operating license on 7 
December 2005 to act as a Custodian of 
Pension Fund Assets in accordance with 
the Pension Reform Act 2004, or any 
amendment or re-enactment thereof for 
the time being in force.

First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited  is 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of First Bank 
of Nigeria Limited. The ultimate parent 
company is FBN Holdings Plc.

2 Summary of significant  
 accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied 
in the preparation of these financial 
statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to 
all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated. 
  
2.1  Basis of preparation   
 and measurement

The financial statements comprise the 
income statement, statement of other 
comprehensive income, the statement 
of financial position, the statement of 
changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows and selected notes for the 
Company.

The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as 
issued by the IASB. Additional information 
required by national regulations is 
included where appropriate.

The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the going 
concern principle under the historical cost 
convention.

2.2 Changes in accounting  
 policy and disclosures

New and amended IFRS Standards that 
are effective for the current year.

Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 
Leases

In the current year, the Company has 
applied IFRS 16 (as issued by the IASB in 
January 2016) that is effective for annual 
periods that begin on or after 1 January 
2019.

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended 
requirements with respect to lease 
accounting. It introduces significant 
changes to lessee accounting by removing 
the distinction between operating 
and finance lease and requiring the 
recognition of a right-of-use asset and 
a lease liability at commencement for all 
leases, except for short-term leases and 
leases of low value assets. In contrast 
to lessee accounting, the requirements 
for lessor accounting have remained 
largely unchanged. Details of these new 
requirements are described in Note 3. 
The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 
on the Company’s financial statements is 
described below.

The date of initial application of IFRS 16 
for the Company is 1 January 2019.

(a) Impact of the new definition  
 of a lease

The Company has made use of the 
practical expedient available on transition 
to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether 
a contract is or contains a lease. 
Accordingly, the definition of a lease in 
accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will 
continue to be applied to those contracts 
entered or modified before 1 January 
2019.

The change in definition of a lease mainly 
relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 
determines whether a contract contains 

a lease on the basis of whether the 
customer has the right to control the 
use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. This 
is in contrast to the focus on ‘risks and 
rewards’ in IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Company applies the definition of 
a lease and related guidance set out in 
IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into or 
changed on or after 1 January 2019. In 
preparation for the first-time application 
of IFRS 16, the Company has carried out 
an implementation project. The project 
has shown that the new definition in IFRS 
16 will not significantly change the scope 
of contracts that meet the definition of a 
lease for the Company. 

Adoption of new and revised Standards

(b) Impact on Lessee Accounting

(i) Former operating leases

IFRS 16 changes how the Company 
accounts for leases previously classified 
as operating leases under IAS 17, which 
were off balance sheet.

Applying IFRS 16, for all leases (except as 
noted below), the Company:

(a) Recognises right-of-use assets 
and lease liabilities in the 
statement of financial position, 
initially measured at the present 
value of the future lease 
payments;

(b) Recognises depreciation of 
right-of-use assets and interest 
on lease liabilities in profit or 
loss;

(c) Separates the total amount 
of cash paid into a principal 
portion (presented within 
financing activities) and interest 
(presented within financing 
activities) in the statement of 
cash flows.
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Lease incentives (e.g. rent-free 
period) are recognised as part of the 
measurement of the right-of-use assets 
and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 
they resulted in the recognition of a lease 
incentive, amortised as a reduction of 
rental expenses generally on a straight-
line basis.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are 
tested for impairment in accordance with 
IAS 36.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 
months or less) and leases of low-value assets 
(such as tablet and personal computers, small 
items of office furniture and telephones), 
the Company has opted to recognise a lease 
expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by 
IFRS 16. This expense is presented within ‘other 
expenses’ in profit or loss.

(ii) Former finance leases

The main differences between IFRS 16 
and IAS 17 with respect to contracts 
formerly classified as finance leases is 
the measurement of the residual value 
guarantees provided by the lessee to the 
lessor. IFRS 16 requires that the Company 
recognises as part of its lease liability 
only the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, rather 
than the maximum amount guaranteed as 
required by IAS 17. This change did not 
have a material effect on the Company’s 
financial statements.

(c) Impact on Lessor Accounting

IFRS 16 does not change substantially 
how a lessor accounts for leases. Under 
IFRS 16, a lessor continues to classify 
leases as either finance leases or 
operating leases and account for those 
two types of leases differently.

However, IFRS 16 has changed and 
expanded the disclosures required, in 
particular with regard to how a lessor 
manages the risks arising from its residual 
interest in leased assets.

Under IFRS 16, an intermediate lessor accounts 
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two 
separate contracts.

The intermediate lessor is required to classify 
the sub-lease as a finance or operating lease 
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising 
from the head lease (and not by reference to 
the underlying asset as was the case under 
IAS 17).

Because of this change, the Company has 
reclassified certain sub-lease agreements 
as finance leases agreement. As required 
by IFRS 9, an allowance for expected 
credit losses has been recognised on the 
finance lease receivables.

(d) Financial impact of the initial  
 application of IFRS 16

Commentary:

Unlike other recent Standards (e.g. 
IFRS 15), for entities that adopt the 
new Standard using a full retrospective 
approach, IFRS 16 does not provide an 
exception from the requirement of IAS 
8:28(f) to present the effect of the new 
Standard on the current period amounts.
The tables below show the amount of 
adjustment for each financial statement 
line item affected by the application of 
IFRS 16 for the current and prior years.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment 
Features with Negative Compensation

The Company has adopted the 
amendments to IFRS 9 for the first time 
in the current year. The amendments 
to IFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose 
of assessing whether a prepayment 
feature meets the ‘solely payments of 
principal and interest’ (SPPI) condition, 
the party exercising the option may pay 
or receive reasonable compensation 
for the prepayment irrespective of the 
reason for prepayment. In other words, 
financial assets with prepayment features 
with negative compensation do not 
automatically fail SPPI.

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term 
Interests in Associates and Joint 
Ventures

The Company has adopted the 
amendments to IAS 28 for the first time 
in the current year. The amendment 
clarifies that IFRS 9, including its 
impairment requirements, applies to other 
financial instruments in an associate or 
joint venture to which the equity method 
is not applied. These include long-term 
interests that, in substance, form part of 
the entity’s net investment in an associate 
or joint venture. The Company applies 
IFRS 9 to such long-term interests before 
it applies IAS 28. In applying IFRS 9, the 
Company does not take account of any 
adjustments to the carrying amount of 
long term interests required by IAS 28 
(i.e., adjustments to the carrying amount 
of long-term interests arising from the 
allocation of losses of the investee or 
assessment of impairment in accordance 
with IAS 28).

Annual Improvements to IFRS 
Standards 2015–2017 Cycle 
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business 
Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint 
Arrangements, IAS 12 Income Taxes 
and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The Company has adopted the 
amendments included in the Annual 
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–
2017 Cycle for the first time in the 
current year. The Annual Improvements 
include amendments to four Standards:

IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the 
Company should recognise the income 
tax consequences of dividends in profit 
or loss, other comprehensive income or 
equity according to where the Company 
originally recognised the transactions 
that generated the distributable profits. 
This is the case irrespective of whether 
different tax rates apply to distributed 
and undistributed profits.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any 
specific borrowing remains outstanding 
after the related asset is ready for its 
intended use or sale, that borrowing 
becomes part of the funds that an entity 
borrows generally when calculating the 
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when the 
Company obtains control of a business 
that is a joint operation, the Company 
applies the requirements for a business 
combination achieved in stages, including 
remeasuring its previously held interest 
(PHI) in the joint operation at fair value. 
The PHI to be remeasured includes 
any unrecognised assets, liabilities and 
goodwill relating to the joint operation.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a 
party that participates in, but does not 
have joint control of, a joint operation 
that is a business obtains joint control 
of such a joint operation, the Company 
does not remeasure its PHI in the joint 
operation.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee 
Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment 
or Settlement

The Company has adopted the 
amendments of IAS 19 for the first time 
in the current year. The amendments 
clarify that the past service cost (or 
of the gain or loss on settlement) is 
calculated by measuring the defined 
benefit liability (asset) using updated 
assumptions and comparing benefits 
offered and plan assets before and after 
the plan amendment (or curtailment or 
settlement) but ignoring the effect of 
the asset ceiling (that may arise when 
the defined benefit plan is in a surplus 
position). IAS 19 is now clear that the 
change in the effect of the asset ceiling 

that may result from the plan amendment 
(or curtailment or settlement) is 
determined in a second step and is 
recognised in the normal manner in other 
comprehensive income.

The paragraphs that relate to measuring 
the current service cost and the net 
interest on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) have also been amended. 
The Company will now be required to 
use the updated assumptions from this 
re-measurement to determine current 
service cost and net interest for the 
remainder of the reporting period after 
the change to the plan. In the case of 
the net interest, the amendments make 
it clear that for the period post plan 
amendment, the net interest is calculated 
by multiplying the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) as re-measured under IAS 
19:99 with the discount rate used in the 
re-measurement (also taking into account 
the effect of contributions and benefit 
payments on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset)).

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 
Treatments

The Company has adopted IFRIC 23 
for the first time in the current year. 
IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the 
accounting tax position when there is 
uncertainty over income tax treatments. 
The Interpretation requires the Company 
to:

� determine whether uncertain tax 
positions are assessed separately 
or as a company; and

� assess whether it is probable 
that a tax authority will accept 
an uncertain tax treatment used, 
or proposed to be used, by an 
entity in its income tax filings:

 – If yes, the Company should 
determine its accounting 
tax position consistently 
with the tax treatment used 
or planned to be used in its 
income tax filings.

 – If no, the Company should 
reflect the effect of 
uncertainty in determining 
its accounting tax position 
using either the most likely 
amount or the expected 
value method.

New and revised IFRS Standards in 
issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these 
financial statements, the Company has 
not applied the following new and revised 
IFRS Standards that have been issued but 
are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts IFRS 10 
and IAS 28 (amendments)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a 
business Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8.

Definition of material

Conceptual Framework Amendments to 
References to the Conceptual Framework 
in IFRS Standards

The Directors do not expect that the 
adoption of the Standards listed above 
will have a material impact on the 
financial statements of the Company in 
future periods, except as noted below:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation 
and disclosure of insurance contracts and 
supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which 
is modified for insurance contracts with 
direct participation features, described 
as the variable fee approach. The general 
model is simplified if certain criteria 
are met by measuring the liability for 
remaining coverage using the premium 
allocation approach.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The general model uses current 
assumptions to estimate the amount, 
timing and uncertainty of future cash 
flows and it explicitly measures the 
cost of that uncertainty. It takes into 
account market interest rates and the 
impact of policyholders’ options and 
guarantees.

The Standard is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2021, with early application 
permitted. It is applied retrospectively 
unless impracticable, in which case 
the modified retrospective approach or 
the fair value approach is applied. An 
exposure draft Amendments to IFRS 17 
addresses concerns and implementation 
challenges that were identified after 
IFRS 17 was published. One of the main 
changes proposed is the deferral of the 
date of initial application of IFRS 17 by 
one year to annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2022.

For the transition requirements, the 
date of initial application is the start of 
the annual reporting period in which the 
entity first applies the Standard, and 
the transition date is the beginning of 
the period immediately preceding the 
date of initial application.

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) 
Sale or Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 
28 deal with situations where there is a 
sale or contribution of assets between 
an investor and its associate or joint 
venture. Specifically, the amendments 
state that gains or losses resulting 
from the loss of control of a subsidiary 
that does not contain a business in a 
transaction with an associate or a joint 
venture that is accounted for using the 
equity method, are recognised in the 
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent 
of the unrelated investors’ interests in 
that associate or joint venture. Similarly, 
gains and losses resulting from the re-

measurement of investments retained in 
any former subsidiary (that has become 
an associate or a joint venture that is 
accounted for using the equity method) 
to fair value are recognised in the former 
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent 
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the 
new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments 
has yet to be set by the IASB; however, 
earlier application of the amendments is 
permitted. The directors of the Company 
anticipate that the application of these 
amendments may have an impact on the 
Company’s financial statements in future 
periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a 
business

The amendments clarify that while 
businesses usually have outputs, outputs 
are not required for an integrated set 
of activities and assets to qualify as a 
business. To be considered a business 
an acquired set of activities and assets 
must include, at a minimum, an input 
and a substantive process that together 
significantly contribute to the ability to 
create outputs.

Additional guidance is provided that 
helps to determine whether a substantive 
process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional 
concentration test that permits a 
simplified assessment of whether an 
acquired set of activities and assets 
is not a business. Under the optional 
concentration test, the acquired set of 
activities and assets is not a business if 
substantially all of the fair value of the 
gross assets acquired is concentrated 
in a single identifiable asset or group of 
similar assets.

The amendments are applied prospectively 
to all business combinations and asset 
acquisitions for which the acquisition date 
is on or after the first annual reporting 

period beginning on or after 1 January 
2020, with early application permitted.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 
Definition of material

The amendments are intended to make 
the definition of material in IAS 1 easier 
to understand and are not intended to 
alter the underlying concept of materiality 
in IFRS Standards. The concept of 
‘obscuring’ material information with 
immaterial information has been included 
as part of the new definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing 
users has been changed from ‘could 
influence’ to ‘could reasonably be 
expected to influence’.

The definition of material in IAS 8 has 
been replaced by a reference to the 
definition of material in IAS 1. In addition, 
the IASB amended other Standards and 
the Conceptual Framework that contain a 
definition of material or refer to the term 
‘material’ to ensure consistency.

The amendments are applied prospectively 
for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2020, with earlier application 
permitted.

Amendments to References to the 
Conceptual Framework in IFRS 
Standards

Together with the revised Conceptual 
Framework, which became effective 
upon publication on 29 March 2018, 
the IASB has also issued Amendments to 
References to the Conceptual Framework 
in IFRS Standards. The document contains 
amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, 
IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 
38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19,IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, 
and SIC-32.

Not all amendments, however, update 
those pronouncements with regard 
to references to and quotes from the 
framework so that they refer to the 
revised Conceptual Framework. Some 
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pronouncements are only updated to 
indicate which version of the Framework 
they are referencing to (the IASC 
Framework adopted by the IASB in 2001, 
the IASB Framework of 2010, or the 
new revised Framework of 2018) or to 
indicate that definitions in the Standard 
have not been updated with the new 
definitions developed in the revised 
Conceptual Framework.

The amendments, where they actually are 
updates, are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2020, 
with early application permitted.

2.4  Financial assets and   
 liabilities

a)  Initial recognition and   
 measurement

Financial assets are initially measured at 
fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of the financial instruments.

b)  Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial measurement, 
financial instruments are measured either 
at fair value or amortised cost depending 
on their classification.

c)  Classification and related   
 measurement

Subsequent to initial measurement, 
financial instruments are measured either 
at amortized cost or fair value depending 
on their classification category.

Financial assets

Subsequent to initial recognition, all 
financial assets within the Company are 
measured at

Amortized cost
Fairvalue through comprehensive income 
(FVOCI); or
Fairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at 
FVTOCI

The Company assesses the classification 
and measurement of a financial asset 
based on the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the asset and the 
Company’s business model for managing 
the asset.

For an asset to be classified and 
measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, 
its contractual terms should give rise to 
cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
outstanding (SPPI).

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal 
is the fair value of the financial asset 
at initial recognition. That principal 
amount may change over the life of 
the financial asset (e.g. if there are 
repayments of principal). Interest consists 
of consideration for the time value of 
money, for the credit risk associated with 
the principal amount outstanding during 
a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs, as well as 
a profit margin. The SPPI assessment 
is made in the currency in which the 
financial asset is denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI 
are consistent with a basic lending 
arrangement. Contractual terms that 
introduce exposure to risks or volatility 
in the contractual cash flows that are 
unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, 
such as exposure to changes in equity 
prices or commodity prices, do not 
give rise to contractual cash flows that 
are SPPI. An originated or an acquired 
financial asset can be a basic lending 
arrangement irrespective of whether it is 
a loan in its legal form.

An assessment of business models for 
managing financial assets is fundamental 
to the classification of a financial asset. 
The Company determines the business 
models at a level that reflects how group 

of financial assets are managed together 
to achieve a particular business objective. 
The Company’s business model does not 
depend on management’s intentions for 
an individual instrument, therefore the 
business model assessment is performed 
at a higher level of aggregation rather 
than on an instrument-by-instrument 
basis.

The Company has more than one 
business model for managing its financial 
instruments which reflect how the 
Company manages its financial assets 
in order to generate cash flows. The 
Company’s business models determine 
whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling 
financial assets or both.

The Company considers all relevant 
information available when making the 
business model assessment. However, 
this assessment is not performed on the 
basis of scenarios that the Company 
does not reasonably expect to occur, 
such as so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress 
case’ scenarios. The Company takes into 
account all relevant evidence available 
such as:

�	how the performance of the business 
model and the financial assets held within 
that business model are evaluated and 
reported to the entity’s key management 
personnel;     
  
�	the risks that affect the performance 
of the business model (and the financial 
assets held within that business model) 
and, in particular, the way in which those 
risks are managed; and    
  
�	how managers of the business 
are compensated (e.g. whether the 
compensation is based on the fair 
value of the assets managed or on the 
contractual cash flows collected).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, 
the Company determines whether newly 
recognised financial assets are part of 
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an existing business model or whether 
they reflect the commencement of a new 
business model. The Company reassess its 
business models each reporting period to 
determine whether the business models 
have changed since the preceding period. 
For the current and prior reporting period 
the Company has not identified a change 
in its business models.

When a debt instrument measured at 
FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative 
gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. 
In contrast, for an equity investment 
designated as measured at FVTOCI, the 
cumulative gain/loss previously recognised 
in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to 
profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI 
are subject to impairment.

As at 31 December 2018, the company 
does not hold any debt instrument 
measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Debt instruments Fair value through 
profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

Assets with contractual cashflows that 
are not SPPI; or/and assets that are held 
in a business model other than held to 
collect contractual cash flows or held to 
collect and sell; or assets designated at 
FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair 
value, with any gains/losses arising on 
remeasurement recognised on profit or 
loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset 
and the net amount reported in the 
statement of financial position only when 
there is a legally enforceable right to 

offset the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances 
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the 
following financial instruments measured 
at amortized cost:

Debt investment securities;

Other receivables; 

ECLs are required to be measured through 
a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 

12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that 
result from those default events on the 
financial instrument that are possible 
within 12 months after the reporting date, 
(referred to as Stage 1); or full lifetime 
ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all 
possible default events over the life of 
the financial instrument, (referred to as 
Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is 
required for a financial instrument if the 
credit risk on that financial instrument 
has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. For all other financial 
instruments, ECLs are measured at an 
amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate 
of the present value of credit losses. 
These are measured as the present value 
of the difference between the cash flows 
due to the Company under the contract 
and the cash flows that the Company 
expects to receive arising from the 
weighting of multiple future economic 
scenarios, discounted at the asset’s EIR.

The Company measures ECL on an 
individual basis, or on a collective basis 
for debt instruments that share similar 
economic risk characteristics. The 
measurement of the loss allowance is 
based on the present value of the asset’s 

expected cash flows using the asset’s 
original EIR, regardless of whether it is 
measured on an individual basis or a 
collective basis.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company monitors all financial 
assets that are subject to the impairment 
requirements to assess whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition. If there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk the 
Company will measure the loss allowance 
based on lifetime rather than 12-month 
ECL. The Company’s accounting policy is 
not to use the practical expedient that 
financial assets with ‘low’ credit risk at 
the reporting date are deemed not to 
have had a significant increase in credit 
risk. As a result the Company monitors 
all financial assets that are subject to 
impairment for significant increase in 
credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on 
a financial instrument has increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the 
Company compares the risk of a default 
occurring on the financial instrument 
at the reporting date based on the 
remaining maturity of the instrument 
with the risk of a default occurring 
that was anticipated for the remaining 
maturity at the current reporting date 
when the financial instrument was first 
recognised. In making this assessment, 
the Company considers both quantitative 
and qualitative information that is 
reasonable and supportable, including 
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available 
without undue cost or effort, based on 
the Company’s historical experience 
and expert credit assessment including 
forward-looking.

Multiple economic scenarios form the 
basis of determining the probability 
of default at initial recognition and at 
subsequent reporting dates. Different 
economic scenarios will lead to a 
different probability of default. It is the 
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weighting of these different scenarios 
that forms the basis of a weighted 
average probability of default that is used 
to determine whether credit risk has 
significantly increased.

As a back-stop when an asset becomes 
30 days past due, the Company considers 
that a significant increase in credit risk 
has occurred and the asset is in stage 
2 of the impairment model, i.e. the loss 
allowance is measured as the lifetime 
ECL.

Modification and derecognition of 
financial assets 

A modification of a financial asset occurs 
when the contractual terms governing 
the cash flows of a financial asset are 
renegotiated or otherwise modified 
between initial recognition and maturity 
of the financial asset. A modification 
affects the amount and/or timing of the 
contractual cash flows either immediately 
or at a future date. In addition, the 
introduction or adjustment of existing 
covenants of an existing loan would 
constitute a modification even if these 
new or adjusted covenants do not yet 
affect the cash flows immediately but 
may affect the cash flows depending on 
whether the covenant is or is not met 
(e.g. a change to the increase in the 
interest rate that arises when covenants 
are breached).

When a financial asset is modified 
the Company assesses whether this 
modification results in derecognition. In 
accordance with the Company’s policy a 
modification results in derecognition when 
it gives rise to substantially different 
terms. To determine if the modified 
terms are substantially different from the 
original contractual terms the Company 
considers the following:

Qualitative factors, such as contractual 
cash flows after modification are no 
longer SPPI, change in currency or change 
of counterparty, the extent of change 

in interest rates, maturity, covenants. If 
these do not clearly indicate a substantial 
modification, then;

A quantitative assessment is performed 
to compare the present value of the 
remaining contractual cash flows under 
the original terms with the contractual 
cash flows under the revised terms, 
both amounts discounted at the original 
effective interest.

In the case where the financial asset 
is derecognised the loss allowance 
for ECL is remeasured at the date of 
derecognition to determine the net 
carrying amount of the asset at that 
date. The difference between this revised 
carrying amount and the fair value of 
the new financial asset with the new 
terms will lead to a gain or loss on 
derecognition. The new financial asset 
will have a loss allowance measured 
based on 12-month ECL except in the 
rare occasions where the new loan 
is considered to be originated-credit 
impaired. This applies only in the case 
where the fair value of the new loan is 
recognised at a significant discount to its 
revised paramount because there remains 
a high risk of default which has not 
been reduced by the modification. The 
Company monitors credit risk of modified 
financial assets by evaluating qualitative 
and quantitative information, such as if 
the borrower is in past due status under 
the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial 
asset are modified and the modification 
does not result in derecognition, the 
Company determines if the financial 
asset’s credit risk has increased 
significantly since initial recognition by 
comparing:

�	the remaining lifetime PD estimated 
based on data at initial recognition and 
the original contractual terms; with

�	the remaining lifetime PD at the 
reporting date based on the modified 
terms.

The Company derecognises a financial 
asset only when the contractual rights to 
the asset’s cash flows expire (including 
expiry arising from a modification with 
substantially different terms), or when 
the financial asset and substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the asset are transferred to another 
entity. If the Company neither transfers 
nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and continues 
to control the transferred asset, the 
Company recognises its retained interest 
in the asset and an associated liability 
for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Company retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues 
to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for 
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in 
its entirety, the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of 
the consideration received and receivable 
and the cumulative gain/loss that had 
been recognised in OCI and accumulated 
in equity is recognised in profit or loss, 
with the exception of equity investment 
designated as measured at FVTOCI, 
where the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset 
other than in its entirety (e.g. when the 
Company retains an option to repurchase 
part of a transferred asset), the Company 
allocates the previous carrying amount 
of the financial asset between the part it 
continues to recognise under continuing 
involvement, and the part it no longer 
recognises on the basis of the relative 
fair values of those parts on the date of 
the transfer. The difference between the 
carrying amount allocated to the part 
that is no longer recognised and the sum 
of the consideration received for the part 
no longer recognised and any cumulative 
gain/loss allocated to it that had been 
recognised in OCI is recognised in profit 
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or loss. A cumulative gain/loss that 
had been recognised in OCI is allocated 
between the part that continues to be 
recognised and the part that is no longer 
recognised on the basis of the relative 
fair values of those parts. This does not 
apply for equity investments designated 
as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative 
gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is 
not subsequently reclassified to profit or 
loss.

Write-off 

Debt securities and other receivables are 
written off when the Company has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering the 
financial asset (either in its entirety or a 
portion of it). This is the case when the 
Company determines that the borrower 
does not have assets or sources of 
income that could generate sufficient 
cash flows to repay the amounts subject 
to the write-off. A write-off constitutes 
a derecognition event. The Company may 
apply enforcement activities to financial 
assets written off. Recoveries resulting 
from the Company’s enforcement 
activities will result in impairment gains.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in 
the statement of financial position Loss 
allowances for ECL are presented in the 
statement of financial position as follows:

�	for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost: as a deduction from the 
gross carrying amount of the assets;

�	for debt instruments measured at 
FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in 
the statement of financial position as the 
carrying amount is at fair value. However, 
the loss allowance is included as part of 
the revaluation amount in the investments 
revaluation reserve;

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are 
issued are classified as either financial 
liabilities or as equity in accordance 

with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement.

A financial liability is a contractual 
obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset or to exchange financial 
assets or financial liabilities with 
another entity under conditions that are 
potentially unfavourable to the Company 
or a contract that will or may be settled 
in the Company’s own equity instruments 
and is a non-derivative contract for 
which the Company is or may be obliged 
to deliver a variable number of its own 
equity instruments, or a derivative 
contract over own equity that will or may 
be settled other than by the exchange 
of a fixed amount of cash (or another 
financial asset) for a fixed number of the 
Company’s own equity instruments.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that 
evidences a residual interest in the assets 
of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the 
Company are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own 
equity instruments is recognised and 
deducted directly in equity. No gain/
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the 
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of 
the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either 
financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other 
financial liabilities’.

(i) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at 
FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) 
held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as 
at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for 
trading if:

It has been incurred principally for the 
purpose of repurchasing it in the near 
term; or on initial recognition it is part 
of a portfolio of identified financial 
instruments that the Company manages 
together and has a recent actual pattern 
of short-term profit-taking; or it is a 
derivative that is not designated and 
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial 
liability held for trading or contingent 
consideration that may be paid by 
an acquirer as part of a business 
combination may be designated as at 
FVTPL upon initial recognition if: such 
designation eliminates or significantly 
reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; 
or the financial liability forms part of 
a group of financial assets or financial 
liabilities or both, which is managed 
and its performance is evaluated on a 
fair value basis, in accordance with the 
Company’s documented risk management 
or investment strategy, and information 
about the Companying is provided 
internally on that basis; or it forms part 
of a contract containing one or more 
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits 
the entire hybrid (combined) contract to 
be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at 
fair value, with any gains/losses arising 
on remeasurement recognised in profit 
or loss to the extent that they are not 
part of a designated hedging relationship. 
The net gain/loss recognised in profit 
or loss incorporates any interest paid 
on the financial liability and is included 
in the ‘net income from other financial 
instruments at FVTPL’ line item in the 
profit or loss account.

The company does not have any financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss at the reporting date.
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(ii) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including 
borrowings, is initially measured at fair 
value, net of transaction costs. Other 
financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method 
of calculating the amortised cost of a 
financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The 
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments through 
the expected life of the financial liability, 
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, 
to the net carrying amount on initial 
recognition.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises financial 
liabilities when, and only when, the 
Company’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or have expired. The difference 
between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability derecognised and 
the consideration paid and payable is 
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Company exchanges with the 
existing lender one debt instrument into 
another one with substantially different 
terms, such exchange is accounted for as 
an extinguishment of the original financial 
liability and the recognition of a new 
financial liability. Similarly, the Company 
accounts for substantial modification of 
terms of an existing liability or part of 
it as an extinguishment of the original 
financial liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. It is assumed that the 
terms are substantially different if the 
discounted present value of the cash 
flows under the new terms, including any 
fees paid net of any fees received and 
discounted using the original effective 
rate is at least 10 per cent different 
from the discounted present value of 
the remaining cash flows of the original 
financial liability.

2.5  Taxation

Income tax payable/(receivable) is 
calculated on the basis of the applicable 
tax law in the respective jurisdiction 
and is recognised as an expense/
(income) for the period except to the 
extent that current tax related to items 
that are charged or credited in other 
comprehensive income or directly to 
equity. In these circumstances, current 
tax is charged or credited to other 
comprehensive income or to equity.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, 
using the liability method, on temporary 
differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred income tax is determined using 
tax rates (and laws) that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted by 
the date of the statement of financial 
position and are expected to apply when 
the related deferred income tax asset 
is realised or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise 
from depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment, revaluation of certain financial 
assets and liabilities and provisions for 
pensions and other post-retirement 
benefits. However, the deferred income 
tax is not accounted for if it arises from 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in 
a transaction.

The tax effects of carry-forwards of 
unused losses, unused tax credits and 
other deferred tax assets are recognised 
when it is probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which these 
losses and other temporary differences 
can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax provided 
is based on the expected manner of 
realisation or settlement of the carrying 
amount of the asset or liability and is 

not discounted. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realised. 

2.6 Revenue recognition

Custody fees

Custody fees represents fees earned 
by the company for holding pension 
fund assets on behalf of pension fund 
beneficiaries and their administrators. 
Fees are also earned from AMCON and 
Non-Proprietary business lines in respect 
of Treasury bills, Bonds etc. held on 
behalf of clients. Custody fee income is 
recognized on an accrual basis as the 
service is rendered and is stated net of 
tax.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the 
effective interest method. It includes 
interest income from cash and cash 
equivalents.

The effective interest method is a 
method of calculating the amortised 
cost of a financial asset or a financial 
liability and of allocating the interest 
income or interest expense over the 
relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the 
financial instrument or, when appropriate, 
a shorter period to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability. When calculating the effective 
interest rate, the Company estimates 
cash flows considering all contractual 
terms of the financial instrument (for 
example, prepayment options) but does 
not consider future credit losses. The 
calculation includes all fees and points 
paid or received between parties to the 
contract that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs 
and all other premiums or discounts.
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Once a financial asset or a group of 
similar financial assets has been written 
down as a result of an impairment loss, 
interest income is recognised using the 
rate of interest used to discount the 
future cash flows for the purpose of 
measuring the impairment loss.

Other income

Other income includes Admin and 
processing fees relating to transactions 
carried out during the year.

2.7  Share capital

Dividend on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are 
recognised in equity in the period in which 
they are approved by the Company’s 
shareholders.

Dividends for the year that are declared 
after the reporting date are dealt with in 
the subsequent events note.

Dividends proposed by the Directors 
but not yet approved by members are 
disclosed in the financial statements in 
accordance with the requirements of the 
Company and Allied Matters Act. 

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise 
balances with less than three months’ 
maturity from the date of acquisition, 
including cash in hand, deposits held at 
call with banks and other short-term 
highly liquid assets with original maturities 
of three months or less.

For the purposes of statement of cash 
flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
cash and liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less.

2.9 Prepayment

Prepayment includes costs paid relating 
to both current and subsequent financial 
years and are measured at a cost.

2.10 Property, plant and   
 equipment

All property, plant and equipment is 
stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment. Historical 
cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the 
assets.

Subsequent expenditures are included 
in the asset’s carrying amount or are 
recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced asset is derecognised. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are charged 
to other operating expenses during the 
financial year.

An asset is recognised when it is probable 
that economic benefits associated with 
the item flow to the Company and the 
cost item can be rreliably measured. All 
repairs and maintenance cost are charged 
to other operating expenses in the 
financial period in which they occur.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation 
of other assets is calculated using the 
straight-line method to allocate their 
cost to their residual values over their 
estimated useful lives, as follows: 
 

Years

Land -
Computer equipment 3
Office equipment 5
Leasehold premises Over the 

leasehold 
period

Motor vehicles 4

The useful life and residual value of each 
and individual assets are being reviewed 
annually.

Gains and losses on disposals are 
determined by comparing proceeds on 
disposals with carrying amount. These are 
included in ‘other (losses)/gains - net’ in 
the statement of profit or loss.

Payments in advance for items of 
property and equipment are included 
in “Other assets” and upon delivery are 
reclassified as additions in the appropriate 
category of property and equipment.

2.11  Intangible assets

Costs associated with maintaining 
computer software are recognised as an 
expense incurred. Development costs that 
are directly attributable to the design and 
testing of identifiable and unique software 
products controlled by the Company, 
are recognised as intangible assets. 
Subsequent expenditure on software 
assets is capitalised only if it increases 
the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific  assets to which it relates.

Direct computer software development 
costs recognised as intangible assets are 
amortised on the straight-line basis over 
3 years and are carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation. The carrying 
amount of capitalised computer software 
is reviewed annually and is written down 
when the carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful 
life are annually tested for impairment 
and whenever there is an indication that 
the asset may be impaired. The Company 
does not have any intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives.
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2.12  Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan (Pension)

A defined contribution plan is a pension 
plan under which the Company pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity. The 
Company has no legal or constructive 
obligations to pay further contributions if 
the fund does not hold sufficient assets 
to pay all employees the benefits relating 
to employee service in the current and 
prior periods.

In line with the Pension Reform Act 
2014, the Company pays contributions 
to a Pension Fund Administrator (PFA) 
on a mandatory or voluntary basis.  
The Company has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have 
been paid. The employee contributions 
are funded through payroll deductions 
while the Company’s contributions are 
recognised as employee benefit expenses 
when they are due. Prepaid contributions 
are recognised as an asset to the extent 
that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available while unpaid 
contributions are recognised as a liability.

Severance benefits 

The Company has put in place a 
severance benefit package for the 
Executives. The severance benefits are 
calculated based on the number of years 
in service at specified amounts approved 
by the Board of Directors.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations 
are measured on an undiscounted basis 
and are expensed as the related service is 
provided. A provision is recognised for the 
amount expected to be paid under short-
term cash bonus or if the Company has 
a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be reliably estimated.

  
2.13  Provisions, contingent  
 liabilities and assets

Provisions are liabilities that are uncertain 
in amount and timing. Provisions are 
recognised when the Company has a 
present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past events and it is 
more likely than not that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the 
obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated.

Where there is a number of similar 
obligations, the likelihood that an 
outflow will be required in settlement 
is determined by considering the class 
of obligations as a whole. A provision is 
recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item 
included in the same class of obligations 
may be small. Provisions are measured 
at the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the 
obligation using a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are possible 
obligations whose existence will be 
confirmed only by uncertain future events 
or present obligations where the transfer 
of economic benefit is uncertain or 
cannot be reliably measured. Contingent 
liabilities are not recognised but are 
disclosed unless they are remote.

2.14  Assets under custody

These assets represent the value of the 
investments of pension fund beneficiaries/
obligors, managed by their respective 
pension fund administrators/AMCON 
and held by the Company in its capacity 
as the custodian in compliance with the 
Pension Reform Act 2014/AMCON Act 
2010. The Company also keep under 
custody money market instruments on 
behalf of Banks and Discount houses in 
accordance with CBN directives. These 

assets include cash balances held with 
banks, investments in money market 
instruments, equities and real estate. 
These assets are not included in these 
financial statements, but reported as an 
off balance sheet item.

Financial assets held under custody by 
the Company are accounted for in line 
with local statutory requirements-NGAAP.

2.15  Comparatives

Except when a standard or an 
interpretation permits or requires 
otherwise, all amounts are reported or 
disclosed with comparative information.

Where IAS 8 applies, comparative figures 
have been adjusted to conform with 
changes in presentation in the current 
year.

2.16  Going concern

The Management Committee (MANCO) 
has assessed the ability of the company 
to continue as a going concern and is 
satisfied that it has the resources to 
continue in business for the foreseeable 
future. Furthermore, Management is not 
aware of any material uncertainties that 
may cast any significant doubt upon 
the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. Therefore, the financial 
statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis.
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3 Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, 
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Audit, Risk and Compliance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. 
The Audit, Risk and Compliance department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with all operating units. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate 
risk, credit risk, use of non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

3.1  Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss, should any of the Company’s clients or counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual 
obligations to the Company. Credit risk arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents as well as from outstanding custody fees. For 
counterparty banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of ’A’ are accepted. If funds 
are independently rated, these ratings are used. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with 
limits set by the board. Custody fees are deducted directly from funds under management. Management does not expect any losses 
from non-performance by any fund under the Company’s custody.

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors is responsible for oversight of the Entity’s credit risk, including:

�	Formulating credit policies for The Entity, covering collateral requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, 
documentary and legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

�	Establishing the authorization structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. Authorisation limits are allocated to the 
Board of Directors as appropriate.

�	Reviewing and assessing credit risk in all credit exposures prior to making commitment to customers. Renewals and reviews of 
facilities are subject to the same review process.

�	Developing and maintaining The Entity’s criteria for categorizing exposures, and to focus management on the attendant risks. The 
responsibility for approving and reviewing the Risk Assets Acceptance Criteria and Credit Risk Policy lies with the Board of Directors.

�	Reviewing compliance with exposure and concentrated limits, and promotion of best practices throughout The Entity in the 
management of credit risk.

3.2  Liquidity risk
The Company does not have any borrowings. Surplus cash held by the Company over and above balance required for working capital 
management is invested in interest-bearing current accounts and short-term deposits, choosing instruments with appropriate 
maturities. At the reporting date, the Company held liquid cash assets of N8.8billion which is expected to readily generate cash 
inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows.
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Less than
3 months
N’000

Between 
3 months 
and 1 year

N’000

Between 
1 and 2 years

N’000

Between 
2 and 5 years

N’000
At 31 December 2019
Accounts payable 78,132 -   -   -   

At 31 December 2018
Accounts payable 129,484 -   -   -   

3.3  Market risk
The Company takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as interest rates, equity prices and commodity prices. 
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk nor commodity price risk.

3.4  Foreign exchange risk
The Company enters into most of its transactions in Naira which is also the functional currency. The Company is therefore 
not exposed to any material foreign exchange risk.

3.5  Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk, which is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate risk. The Company takes on exposure to the 
effect of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest on both its fair value and cash flow risks.

The table below summarises the Company’s interest rate gap position:

Carrying
amount
N’000

Variable
interest
N’000

Fixed
interest
N’000

Non interest-
bearing
N’000

31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 3,809,490  3,809,490  -    -   
Investment securities 7,513,516  -    7,513,516  -   
Staff loans 46,577  -    46,577  -   
Other assets 810,359  -    -    810,359 

31 December 2018
Assets
Cash and short-term funds  1,827,967  1,827,967  -    -   
Investment securities  10,547,474  -    10,547,474  -   
Staff loans  41,437  -    41,437  -   
Other assets  673,453  -    -    673,453 

Liabilities
The Company has no borrowings. 
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3.6  Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide 
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital. As at the reporting date, the Company was nil geared, i.e. had no borrowings nor overdraft.

The Company is in a highly regulated industry and is constantly under review by the National Pension Commission (Pencom).

3.7  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At 31 December 2019 At 31 December 2018

Carrying value
N’000

Fair value
N’000

Carrying value
N’000

Fair value
N’000

Financial assets

Cash and short-term funds 3,809,490 3,809,490 1,827,967 1,827,967

Investment securities held to maturity 7,513,516 7,513,516 10,547,474 10,547,474

Staff loans 46,577 46,577 41,437 41,437

Other receivables 810,359 810,359 673,453 673,453

Financial liabilities

Account payables 78,132 78,132 129,484 129,484

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value

IFRS 7 requires disclosures for all financial instruments measured at fair value. The Company does not have any financial instruments 
measured at fair value.

4 Custody fees

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Custody fees
 

5,973,447  6,409,599 

Custody fees represent income earned by the Company for performing the custodial service functions over the pension fund assets 
on behalf of pension fund administrators for the benefit of the contributors.
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5 Interest income

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Placements  11,708  2,511 
Treasury bills  1,533,400  1,704,826 
Current account  2,488  1,948 
Others  11,232  11,093 

 1,558,828  1,720,378 

6 Other income

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Admin/processing  fees  103  3,952 
Refund of training fees by ITF  2,362  -   
Provision no longer required  1,679  -   
Recoveries on safe custody fees  3,576  142 

 7,720  4,094 

7 Operating expenses

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Auditors' remuneration  15,000  10,000 
Directors' emoluments  261,818  384,053 
Passages, travels and medical  42,272  50,308 
Corporate promotions  80,926  92,203 
Statutory fees  217,666  138,788 
Maintenance  178,630  141,287 
Bank and sundry charges  24,775  18,889 
Training  72,561  84,911 
Other losses  1,430  11,263 
Donations and subscriptions  14,527  9,377 
Loss on disposal  13,695  -   
Communications, postages, light and printing  39,232  35,641 
Insurance premiums, rent and rates  49,410  46,735 
Ammortisation of prepaid employee benefit  5,129  8,981 
Professional fees and other consultancy costs  58,925  58,897 
Other expenses  564,367  573,180 
Nigeria Informatiion Technology Development Agency Levy  51,055  57,908 

 1,691,418  1,722,421 
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7.1 Personnel expenses

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Staff costs (excluding Executive Directors)

Wages and salaries  488,207  451,725 

Defined contribution plan  19,648  19,187 

 507,855  470,912 

7.1a The average number of persons employed by the Company during the year was as follows:

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Executive  1  2 

Management  6  6 

Non-management  75  72 

 82  80 

7.1b The number of employees, other than Directors, who received emoluments in the following ranges (excluding pension   
 contributions and certain benefits) were:

31 December
2019

 Number

31 December
2018

 Number

N300,000   - N2,000,000  60  57 

N2,000,001 - N2,800,000  7  7 

N2,800,001 - N3,500,000  4  4 

N3,500,001 - N4,000,000  5  5 

N4,000,001 - N5,500,000  1  1 

N5,500,001 - and above  4  4 

 81  78 
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8 ECL Impairment allowance on cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at     
 amortized cost

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Cash and cash equivalents  -    345 

Investment securities  (14,225)  (537)

Loans and receivables  (105)  237 

Safe custody fees receivables  62,737  4,748 

 48,407  4,793 

8.1 Movement in ECL Impairment

At 1 January
N'000

Write off
during the year

N'000

 Additions during 
the year
N’000

 
At 31 December

N’000

Cash and cash equivalents  2,303  -    -    2,303 

Staff loans  4,396  -    (105)  4,291 

Investment securities  14,858  -    (14,225)  633 

Safe custody fees receivables  4,748 (4,748)  62,737  62,737 

26,305 (4,748)  48,407  69,964 

8.2 Stages of ECL Impairment

Stage 1
N'000

  Stage 2
N’000

 Stage 3
N’000

Cash and cash equivalents 2,303  -    -   

Staff loans 4,291  -    -   

Investment securities 633  -    -   

Safe custody fees receivable  -  -    62,737 

7,227  -    62,737 
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Land
N’000

Computer 
and office 
equipment

N’000

Leasehold 
premises
N’000

Computers-
WIP

N’000

Motor 
vehicles
N’000

Total
N’000

Cost

At 1 January  2019  864,228  354,444  213,503  396,634  206,445  2,035,254 

Reclassification  -    220,756  -    (258,058)  -    (37,302)

Write off (WIP)  -    -    (1,260)  -    (1,260)

Additions  -    79,606  -    2,365,132  26,757  2,471,495 

Disposals  -    (12,543)  -    -    (83,580)  (96,123)

At 31 December 2019  864,228  642,263  213,503  2,502,448  149,622  4,372,064 

Depreciation and impairment losses

At 1 January  2019  -    280,948  130,336  -    89,010  500,294 

Depreciation for the year  -    59,575  54,512  -    34,314  148,401 

Disposals  -    (11,007)  -    -    (26,032)  (37,039)

At 31 December 2019  -    329,516  184,848  -    97,292  611,656 

Net book value

At 31 December 2019 864,228 312,747 28,655 2,502,448 52,330 3,760,408

Cost

At 1 January  2018 864,228 340,831 202,539 95,945 167,220  1,670,763 

Additions  -   17,807  10,964 300,689 75,625  405,085 

Disposals  -    (4,194)  -    -    (36,400)  (40,594)

At 31 December 2018  864,228  354,444  213,503  396,634  206,445  2,035,254 

Depreciation and impairment losses

At 1 January  2018  -   240,027  77,688  -   80,718  398,433 

Depreciation for the year  -   44,420 52,648  -   44,692  141,760 

Disposals  -    (3,499)  -    -    (36,400)  (39,899)

At 31 December 2018  -    280,948  130,336  -    89,010  500,294 

Net book value

At 31 December 2018 864,228 73,496 83,167 396,634 117,435 1,534,959
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10 Intangible assets

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Computer software

Cost

At 1 January  283,868  282,713 

Reclassification from WIP  37,302  -   

Additions  9,618  1,155 

At 31 December  330,788  283,868 

Accumulated amortisation  279,434  275,984 

At 1 January  9,897  3,450 

Amortisation charge for the year

At 31 December  289,331  279,434 

Carrying amount

At 31 December  41,457  4,434 

11 Deferred tax asset

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

At  1 January  150,171  171,224 

Changes during the year:

- Charge/(credit) to profit and loss  (17,901) (21,053)

At 31 December  132,270  150,171 

The Directors have assessed the availability of taxable profit as at the reporting date and are of the opinion that it is appropriate to 
recognise the deferred tax asset as it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deferred taxation asset will be 
utilised.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019



FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

RISK REVIEWGOVERNANCESTRATEGIC REPORTINTRODUCTION

First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 201998

11.1 The deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities are attributable to the following items:

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Property, plant and equipment 43,275  18,680 

Loans and other receivables (21,564)  (4,225)

Other assets (355)  (1,424)

Creditors and accruals (160,494)  (163,590)

Intangible assets 6,868  389 

At 31 December (132,270)  (150,170)

11.2 Right of use asset

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Right of use 135,815 -

135,815 -

12 Loans and receivables

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Loans (Note 12.1)  46,577  41,437 

Other receivables (Note 12.2)  810,359  673,453 

 856,936  714,890 

12.1 Staff loans

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Amortized cost

Staff loans  50,868  45,833 

ECL adjustment (4291) (4396)

 46,577  41,437 
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12.2 Other receivables

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Custody fees receivable  873,096  678,201 

ECL adjustment-stage 3  (62,737)  (4,748)

 810,359  673,453 

13 Other assets

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Prepayments  42,604  117,667 

Account receivables others  16,872  -   

 59,476  117,667 

13.1  Account receivables others

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Other receivables  30,956  14,084 

Provision for other account receivables (14,084) (14,084)

 16,872  -   

14 Investment securities

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Treasury bills with maturity of more than 90 days  7,516,452  10,562,332 

ECL adjustment (Note 8.1) (2,936) (14,858)

 7,513,516  10,547,474 

Treasury bills represent short-term instruments issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria where the Company has operations. The fair 
value of treasury bills through profit and loss are determined with reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. 
The estimated fair value of treasury bills at amortised costs represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows 
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.
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15.a Cash and cash equivalents

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Cash and bank balance  25,585  17,584 

Short-term placements  990,533  170,076 

Treasury bills (maturing within three months)  2,793,372  1,640,307 

 3,809,490  1,827,967 

15.b Cash and cash equivalents for cashflow

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Cash and bank balance  25,585  17,584 

Short-term placements  990,533  170,076 

Treasury bills (maturing within three months)  2,793,372  1,642,610 

3,809,490 1,830,270

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months maturity 
from date of acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less.

15.c Treasury bills (maturing within three months)

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Treasury bills maturing within three months  2,793,372  1,642,610 

ECL Impairment - (2,303) 

 2,793,372  1,640,307 
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16 Share capital

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Authorised

2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Issued

At 1 January  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Issued during the year  -    -   

At 31 December  2,000,000  2,000,000 

The issued ordinary shares comprise 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
First Bank of Nigeria Limited.

17 Retirement benefit obligations

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position arising from the Compnay’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit 
plan:

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  (5,020)  (198,469)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  1,052  215,173 

Funded status (3,968)  16,704 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019



FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

RISK REVIEWGOVERNANCESTRATEGIC REPORTINTRODUCTION

First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2019102

17.1 The provision for severance benefit for Directors over the year is as follows:

The Defined Benefit Obligation was N5.02m which was matched against the planned asset of N1.05m. There is thus an underfunding 
of N3.97m.

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Reconcilliation of obligation
At 1 January 2019  198,469  148,018 
Current service charge  12,706  18,749 
Interest cost  7,329  20,723 
Plan amendment  -    (22,491)
Curtailment (gains)/losses  12,022  -   
Benefits paid by employer  -    -   
Benefits paid by the fund  (225,507)  -   
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to assumption  -    (2,866)
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to experience  -    36,336 
At 31 December 2018 5,019  198,469 

Reconcilliation of change in Plan Assets
At 1 January 2019  215,173  185,428 
Expected return on plan assets  32,276  26,104 
Employer contributions  -    -   
Benefits paid by the fund  (225,507)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on the plan assets  (20,890)  3,641 
As at 31 December 2019 1,052  215,173 

Funded status
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (5,020)  (198,469)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,052  215,173 
At 31 December 2019  (3,968)  16,704 

The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:
2019 2018 

Discount rate (p.a.) 13.5% 15.5%
Pay increase rate (p.a.) 0.0% 0.0%
Inflation rate (p.a.) 11% 12%
Rate of increase in annual gratuity amount (p.a.) 0% 0%

The rates of mortality assumed for employees are the rates published in the A67/70 Ultimate Tables, published jointly by the 
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries in the UK.
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18 Creditors and accruals

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Accounts payable  78,132  129,484 
Accrued others  781,278  737,560 
Deferred income  -    8,754 
Audit fee payable  8,175  10,500 
Statutory Pension Protection Fund (Note 18.1)  478,271  260,604 
Nigeria Information Technology Development Agency Levy  51,055  57,907 

 1,396,911 1,204,809

18.1  Statutory pension protection fund
This relates to provision for a fund established and maintained in respect of guarantee minimum pension as stipulated by the 
National Pension Commission. The assessment for 2018 financial year was based on the percentage of audited account balances 
while assessment for 2019 was based on the approved fees by the Commission.

19 Income tax expense

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Corporate tax 1,268,425 1,440,716
Education tax  90,696  98,446 
Current income tax - current period  1,359,121  1,539,162 
Origination and reversal of temporary deferred tax differences 17,901 21,053
Excess tax provision up to 2015 FY written back (554,706) -
Total income tax expense  822,316  1,560,215 

The movement in the current income tax payable balance is as follows:
At 1 January  2,516,015  2,214,575 
Tax paid  (1,362,067)  (1,237,722)
Income tax charge  1,359,121  1,539,162 
Excess tax provision up to 2015 FY written back  (554,706)  -   
At 31 December  1,958,363  2,516,015 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before income tax  5,134,017  5,790,735 
Tax using domestic rate of 30% (2018: 30%)  1,540,205  1,737,221 
Non-deductible expenses  280,343  251,066 
Education tax levy  90,696  98,446 
Tax exempt income  (460,104)  (511,602)
Tax incentives (74,118)  (14,916)
Over provision up to 2015 FY (554,706) -
Income tax expense  822,316  1,560,215 
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20 Assets under custody

20.1 Pension assets under custody

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Cash and bank balances 45,620,358 27,998,362

Financial assets fair value through profit/loss 1,092,297,512 1,068,285,585

Amortised cost 2,041,001,522 1,548,212,302

Other assets 368,393 2,035,631

Investment properties 107,762,780 114,095,213

3,287,050,565 2,760,627,093

20.2 Non-pension assets under custody

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

 -  12,865,621 

The non-pension assets under custody relates to the assets managed by the Company on behalf of Asset Management Corporation 
of Nigeria (AMCON) under an agreement signed between the Company and AMCON. The amount relates to financial assets obtained 
from obligors of delinquent credit facilities that were taken over from the banks. The non-pension assets business was discontinued 
on the directive of PenCom.

21 Related parties

The Company is a member of the FirstBank group and is thus related to other subsidiaries of the bank through common 
shareholdings or common directorships. The Company identifies its key management personnel as the Board of Directors. Balances 
arising from dealing with related parties are as follows:

a Remuneration of key Management Personnel/Directors

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Fees and sitting allowance 82,424 86,325 

Executive compensation 87,492 127,977 

Other Director expenses  91,902  169,751 

 261,818  384,053 
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b The number of Directors who received fees and other emoluments in the following ranges are:

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

N5,000,000 and above 7 7

c Due from related companies

This represents the balance due to related parties stated below as at year end.

Description Nature of relationship Nature of transaction

31 December
2019
N’000

First Bank of Nigeria Ltd.

Parent company Treasury bills investment  9,236,123

Parent company Short-term placements -

Parent company Bank balance and unpaid 
interest

 25,585

FBNQuest Merchant Bank Ltd. Co-subsidiary Treasury bills investment  1,070,765

Co-subsidiary Short-term placements  990,533

Description Nature of relationship Nature of transaction 31 December
2018
N’000

First Bank of Nigeria Ltd.

Parent company Treasury bills investment  12,187,782 

Parent company Short-term placements  170,076 

Parent company Bank balance and unpaid 
interest

 17,584 

FBNQuest Merchant Bank Ltd. Co-subsidiary Treasury bills investment  -   

Co-subsidiary Short-term placements  -   

d Due to related companies

There were no amounts due to related parties at the year end (2018-Nil).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22 Critical accounting estimates and significant judgments
The Company makes estimates and assumptions in determining the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities. The estimates 
and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
The resulting estimates seldom equal the related actual results.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty, are shown below:

Gratuity benefits

Assumptions are made in the actuarial valuing of future defined gratuity obligations. The principal assumptions relate to the discount 
rate and rate of inflation. The assumed rate of inflation affects the rate at which salaries are expected to grow and subsequently the 
gratuity that employees receive on retirement. The discount rate is equal to the yield on high-quality corporate bonds that have a 
term to maturity approximating that of the related liability. As a result, there is uncertainty that these assumptions will continue in 
the future. Whilst changes in other assumptions would have an impact, the effect would not be as significant.

Tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on the tax treatment of certain transactions. Deferred tax is recognised on tax 
losses not yet used and on temporary differences where it is probable that there will be taxable revenue against which these can be 
offset. Judgments have been made as to the probability of future taxable revenues being generated against which tax losses will be 
available for offset.

23 Contingent liabilities and commitments
The Company in its ordinary course of business was not involved in any suit as at year end (31 December 2018: Nil). The Directors 
of the Company are not aware of any pending or threatened claims or litigations, which may be material to the financial statements. 
There were no other contingent liabilities requiring disclosure in these financial statements.

24 Capital commitments
The Company had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

25 Subsequent events 
There were no events subsequent to the financial position date which require adjustment to or disclosures in the financial 
statements.

26 Contraventions
There were no infractions during the year (2018: Nil).

27 Earnings/loss per share
Basic earnings or loss per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

31 December
2019
N'000

31 December
2018
N'000

Number of shares (Units '000) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Profit attributable to equity holders 4,311,701 4,230,520
Basic EPS 216 212
Adjusted EPS 216 212
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

STATEMENT OF VALUE-ADDED

 31 December 
2019
N'000 %

31 December
2018
N’000 %

Gross earnings 7,539,995 8,134,071

Bought in materials and services - Local  (1,691,418)  (1,722,421)

ECL impairment  (48,407)  (4,793)

Value added  5,800,170 100  6,406,857 100

Distribution

Employees

Salaries and benefits  507,855  9  470,912  7 

Government

Taxation  804,415  14  1,539,162  24 

Retained for future replacement of assets and 
expansion of business:

Asset replacement (depreciation and amortisation)  158,298  3  145,210  2 

Deferred taxation  17,901  1  21,053  0 

Transfers to reserves  4,311,701  73  4,230,520  66 

 5,800,170  100  6,406,857  100 

Value added is the wealth created by the efforts of the Company and its employees and its allocation between employees, 
shareholders, government and re-investment for the creation of further wealth.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 
2019
N'000

31 December 
2018

N’000

31 December
2017

N’000

31 December
2016

N’000

31 December
2015

N’000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment  3,760,408  1,534,959  1,272,330  1,249,728  1,130,266 

Intangible assets  41,457  4,434  6,729  5,883  53,727 

Right of Use of Asset  135,815  -    -    -    -   

Deferred tax assets  132,270  150,171  171,224  103,092  111,323 

 4,069,950  1,689,564  1,450,283  1,358,703  1,295,316 

Current assets

Loans and other receivables  856,936  714,890  764,521  564,321  589,899 

Other assets  59,476  117,667  156,084  128,168  160,796 

Investment securities  7,513,516  10,547,474  9,889,063  8,756,662  1,554,339 

Cash and cash equivalents  3,809,490  1,827,967  1,475,645  87,052  5,958,086 

 12,239,418  13,207,998  12,285,313  9,536,203  8,263,120 

Total assets  16,309,368  14,897,562  13,735,596  10,894,906  9,558,436 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital  2,000,000  2,000,000  2,000,000  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Retained earnings  10,950,126  9,176,737  8,436,036  6,358,893  4,525,867 

Total equity  12,950,126  11,176,737  10,436,036  8,358,893  6,525,867 

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities  -    -    -    -    -   

Retirement benefit obligations  3,968  -    -    -    38,543 

 3,968  -    -    -    38,543 

Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals 1,396,911 1,204,809  1,084,985  746,933  1,534,510 

Income tax liabilities 1,958,363 2,516,016  2,214,575 1,789,080 1,459,516

 3,355,274  3,720,825  3,299,560  2,536,013  2,994,026 

Total liabilities  3,359,242  3,720,825  3,299,560  2,536,013  2,994,026 

Total equity and liabilities  16,309,368  14,897,562  13,735,596  10,894,906  9,558,436 

Pension assets under custody 3,287,050,565 2,760,627,093 2,420,701,587 1,958,902,756 1,814,340,864

Non-pension assets under custody  -   12,865,621 621,991,192  551,562,982  299,954,655 
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
INCOME STATEMENT

31 December 
2019
N'000

31 December 
2018

N’000

31 December
2017

N’000

31 December
2016

N’000

31 December
2015

N’000

Gross earnings 7,539,995 8,134,071 7,808,475 5,549,097 4,947,521

Profit before income tax 5,134,017 5,790,735 5,767,967 4,054,342 3,408,770

Income tax expense (822,316) (1,560,215)  (1,405,693)  (1,224,818)  (991,981)

Profit for the year  4,311,701  4,230,520  4,362,274  2,829,524  2,416,789 

Per share data

Earnings per share - basic (Kobo) 216 212 141 121 86

Net (liabilities)/assets per share (Naira) 6 6 4 4 4
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GLOSSARY OF RATIOS

Ratio Basis of computation

Cost to income ratio =
Total cost

Total income

Dividend per share =
Dividend

Number of shares in issue

Average earnings per share
Net profit for the year

Number of average outstanding shares

Return on average assets =
PAT

Average Total Asset x 100

Return on average equity =
PAT

Average Total Equity x 100
 Total market value 
of assets under custody = Market value of all investment options available to the fund
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ABBREVIATIONS
AC Audit Committee

AGM Annual General Meeting

AMCON Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria

BIC Banque Internationale de Crédit SARL

CBN Central Bank of Nigeria

CEO Chief Executive Officer 

CON Commander of the Order of the Niger 

CPFA Closed Pension Fund Administrator

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

ED Executive Director

FPCNL First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited

FX Foreign Exchange

IBAM Investment Banking and Asset Management

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IT Information Technology

KPI Key Performance Indicator

MBAM Merchant Banking and Asset Management

MFR Member of the Order of the Federal Republic

N Naira

OFR Officer of the Order of the Federal Republic

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Income Tax

PFA Pension Fund Administrator

PFC Pension Fund Custodian

PenCom National Pension Commission

PTADS Pension Transition Arrangement departments

RSA Retirement Savings Account
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